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FILE REF.: CDRC CASE # Z 06-5033 Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve (“Trenza") Master

Plan Amendment

ISSUE:

Commonweal Conservancy (Ted Harrison), Applicant, requests a Master Plan Amendment to a
previously approved Master Plan to reconfigure the Planning Envelope from 10,360 acres to
3,560 acres, to reduce the size of the development from 965 dwelling units and 150,000 square
feet of commercial and civic land uses to 450 dwelling units and 88,500 square feet of mixed
use, commercial and civic land uses, a green cemetery and a 60-seat outdoor amphitheater. The
Applicant also requests a modification of the original five phase development to six phases that
would take place over a period of 12 years.

The property is located south of Eldorado, west off US 285, south of the Railroad tracks, within
Sections 1, 3, 11-14 23 and 24, Township 14 North, Range 9 East; Sections 5-7 and 18,
Township 14 North, Range 10 East; Sections 34-36, Township 15 North, Range 9 East; and
Sections 30 and 31, Township 15 North, Range10 East (Commission District 5).

Vicinity Map:

Site Location
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SUMMARY:

On November 20, 2014, the County Development Review Committee (CDRC) recommended
approval of a Master Plan Amendment to reconfigure the Planning Envelope from 10,360 acres
to 3,560 acres, to reduce the size of the development from 965 dwelling units and 150,000 square
feet of commercial and civic land uses to 450 dwelling units and 88,500 square feet of mixed
use, commercial and civic land uses, a green cemetery and a 60-seat outdoor amphitheater. The
Applicant also requests a modification of the original five phase development to six phases that
would take place over a period of 12 years (refer to November 20, 2014 CDRC Meeting Minutes
as Exhibit “6”) .

On June 12, 2007, the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) granted Master Plan Zoning
approval for a mixed-use development consisting of 965 residential units; 150,000 sq. ft. of
commercial, institutional, educational, and recreational land uses; and open space, parks, and
trails on 10,316 acres.

On February 9, 2010, the BCC granted Preliminary Plat and Development Plan approval for
Phase I of the referenced subdivision (refer to February 9, 2010 BCC Meeting Minutes as
Exhibit “5"") which consisted of 131 single family residential lots and 3 multi-family residential
lots for a total of 149 residential units, and 5 non-residential lots within a 60 acre development
envelope. This approval was set to expire on February 9, 2012.

On December 13, 2011, the BCC granted a 36-month Time Extension of the previously approved
Preliminary Plat and Development Plan for Phase 1 which consists of 131 single family
residential lots, three (3) multi-family residential lots for a total of 149 residential units and five
(5) non-residential lots within a 60 acre development envelope within the 10,316 acre area (refer
to December 13, 2011 BCC Meeting Minutes as Exhibit”4”). This time extension is set to expire
on Feb 9, 2015. A new Preliminary and Final Plat conforming to the Master Plan will need to be
submitted.

The Applicant now requests a Master Plan Amendment to reconfigure the Planning Envelope
from 10,360 acres to 3,560 acres, to reduce the size of the development from 965 dwelling units
and 150,000 square feet of commercial and civic land uses to 450 dwelling units and 88,500
square feet of mixed use, commercial and civic land uses, a green cemetery and a 60-seat
outdoor amphitheater. The Applicant also requests a revision of the original five phase
development to six phases that would take place over a period of 12 years.

The Applicant states: “In the face of a deep and protracted economic recession, Commonweal
has been re-evaluating its economic opportunities and development ambitions for Trenza and the
larger Galisteo Basin Preserve.”

The Applicant proposes to reduce the extent of the original planning envelope from 10,316 acres
to 3,560 acres. By constraining the size of the planning envelope, the development’s densities
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will be reduced from their original allowance of 965 dwelling units and 150,000 sq. fi. of
commercial and civic land uses to an allowance of 450 dwelling units and lots with 88,500 sq. fi.
of mixed-use, commercial and civic land uses. Although, the building envelope is still expected
to encompass approximately 235 acres, the density of the development will be reduced relative
to the existing approved plan.

Based on the changed size and scale of the proposed development, the project’s water budget
will be reduced. Specifically the water budget for the development uses will involve a 78-acre-

foot allocation for residential uses and 20.45 acre-foot allocation for mixed use, commercial and
civic land uses. By this allocation, the proposed water demand at fuil build-out in 2026 would
total 98.45-acre-foot.

The Applicant also requests a modification to the original Master Plan to change the location of
the proposed Memorial Landscape (aka “Green Cemetery™). The Memorial Landscape will be
relocated slightly south of its current location to an area that will allow for improved access from
Morning Star Ridge Road.

The Application includes a revision to the original five-phase development to six phases that
would take place over a period of 12 years.

Phase 1 of the development, a residential neighborhood (“North Face*) will consist of 11
residential units ranging in size from 750 square feet to 1,450 square feet and an 11-acre
Memorial/Green Cemetery, a 60-seat community outlioor performance space/amphitheater and a
10,000 square foot storage facility for the Special Use parcel, which will be located
approximately 1/3 mile southeast of the North Face neighborhood. The storage facility will be
constructed in two phases. The facility’s first 5,000 square feet will be constructed in Phasel
with the remaining square footage to be constructed in Phase 3.

The following Phases 2 through 6 will consist of the following:

Phase 2 - 88 residential units and 27,850 sq. ft. of commercial/civic uses;
Phase 3 - 88 residential units and 27,850 sq. ft. of commercial/civic uses;
Phase 4 - 88 residential units and 27,800 sq. ft. of commercial/civic uses;
Phase 5 - 88 residential units; and

Phase 6 - 87 residential units.

This Application was submitted on May 14, 2014.

Growth Management staff have reviewed this Application for compliance with pertinent
Code requirements and finds the project is in compliance with County criteria for Master
Plan and Phasing Plan approval.
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APPROVAL SOUGHT:

GROWTH MANAGEMENT
AREA:
LOCATION:

HYDROLOGIC ZONE:

ACCESS AND TRAFFIC:

Master Plan Amendment to reconfigure the Planning
Envelope from 10,360 acres to 3,560 acres, to reduce the
size of the development from 965 dwelling units and
150,000 square feet of commercial and civic land uses to
450 dwelling units and 88,500 square feet of mixed use,
commercial and civic land uses, a green cemetery and a 60-
seat outdoor amphitheater. The Applicant also requests a
revision of the original five phase development to six
phases that would take place over a period of 12 years.

Galisteo, SDA-2

The deyelopment is located south of Eldorado, west off US
285, south of the Railroad tracks.

Basin Fringe and Homestead Hydrologic Zone: Basin
Fringe - minimum lot size is 50 acres per dwelling unit. Lot
size can be reduced to 12.5 acres per dwelling with a 0.25
acro foot per year water restriction. Lot size can be further
reduced if water availability is proven to support the
increased density or by connection to a community water
system.

Homestead — minimum lot size is 160 acres per Dwelling
unit Lot size can be reduced to 40 acres per dwelling with a
0.25 acre foot per year per lot water restriction. Lot size can
be further reduced if water availability is proven to support
increased density or connection to a community water
system.

The site will be accessed off US 84-285 via Astral Valley
Road, which is designated a Minor Arterial and is
approximately 5-miles south of Eldorado.

NMDOT reviewed the original Master plan and stated no
further analysis was required. However, more extensive
studies would be required as each phase is submitted for
platting and development.
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FIRE PROTECTION:

WATER SUPPLY:

LIQUID WASTE:

The Santa Fe County Public Works Department had no
comments.

The Eldorado Fire District will provide fire protection
service to the development. There are three volunteer fire
sub-stations located in Eldorado. Station No. 3 is located
off of Old Road North and US-285, at the Santa Fe County
Transfer Station and is approximately 2.5 miles away.

Water tanks will be strategically placed along the northern
boundary of the development. Water mains will be sized to
supply fire hydrants at a minimum spacing of 1,000 feet in
residential areas and 500 feet near commercial and
community structures.

Water for the development will be a private community
water system served by on-site wells. Storage tanks and
lines will be sized to service fire flow and peak domestic

- demands, a fire flow volume of 1,000 gpm for two hours
- combined with the flow requirements for peak héur water

demand, storage capacity of 750,000 gallons wi}l be
required at build-out.

A water budget by phase for the entire development was
submitted which describes the average residential useage
will be between 0.16 and 0.17 acre-feet per year with 20
acre-feet designated for commercial development. At
Master Plan level this summary water budget is acceptable
but a better understanding of outdoor water usage will be
required for Preliminary and Final Development approval.

A centralized wastewater treatment plant will be
constructed that will process wastewater, as well as
generate tertiary quality effluent for use in outdoor
irrigation and limited indoor domestic purposes. Treated
effluent will be delivered to lots via pressurized reuse lines.
The effluent would also be available for use in on-site drip
irrigation systems.
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SOLID WASTE:

FLOODPLAIN &

TERRAIN MANAGEMENT:

OPEN SPACE:

The Homeowner’s Association will contract with a solid
waste removal service to serve this development. This
condition is noted in the Subdivision Disclosure Statement.

The terrain management plan is designed to mitigate the
effects of stormwater runoff, soil erosion, and/or wildlife
habitat loss that could otherwise result from new
development.

Stormwater runoff will be addressed through a combination
of “low impact design” such as the limitation of the scale
and extent of impervious cover across the site, runoff
dispersion, and use of pervious pavement as well as
swales, constructed wetlands, and rooftop rainwater
harvesting. Traditional engineered solutions could include
the design and construction of gutters, drains, culverts and
detention ponds.

Slopes on the property range from 0-20+%. Grading will
generally not occur on slopes greater than 12%, however
grading on slopes greater than 16% may occur only in
isolated instances such as in arroyo crossings.

The Amended Master Plan includes a planning envelope of
3,560 acres. The development will be clustered within a
235-acre area of the larger planning envelope. A village
park is proposed at the heart of the Village Center.
Neighborhood parks are also proposed which will be
connected via an internal trail and pathway network to
allow residents access to other parks, open space, and and
natural areas in “the village”.

There are three trailheads that have been located to offer
public access to different sections of the trail, which feature
parking areas and signage. The trails will provide mobility
throughout the Village, as well as to the communities
located to the north, south, and east of the Preserve. At
present, the trail system is planned to include at least 50
miles of publicly accessible biking, hiking and equestrian
paths.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING:

PHASING:

The Applicant will meet the 15% affordable housing
requirement for the proposed 450 unit development which
comes out to 68 affordable units, with 17 affordable units
in each of the four income tiers.

The Applicant’s Affordable Housing Plan meets the
requirements of number and distribution of affordable units
proposed, integration, phasing, marketing and sales,
product mix and minimum square footage requirements.

The Affordable Housing Plan is acceptable to the
Affordable Housing Administrator and can be integrated
into an affordable housing agreement that the Applicant
must provide as part of its Final Plat and/or Final
Development Plan application for the first phase of the
project.

The Applicant will integrate affordable units with market
units and develop all units with consistent architecture,
materials and landscaping. The Final Plat and/or
Development Plan for the project and each of its phases
must identify the lots that are designated as Affordable
Units.

The revision to the original five-phase development to six
phases would take place over a period of 12 years.

Phase 1 — 11 residential units and 5,000 sq. ft.
commercial/civic uses;

Phase 2 — 88 residential units and 27,850 sq. ft.
commercial/civic uses;

Phase 3 - 88 residential units and 27,850 sq. ft.
commercial/civic uses;

Phase 4 — 88 residential units and 27,850 sq. ft.
commercial/civic uses;

Phase 5 — 88 residential units; and

Phase 6 — 87 residential units.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the request for Master Plan

Amendment and Phasing Plan. The decision of the CDRC
was to recommend approval of the Master Plan
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Amendment and Phasing Plan subject to the following
conditions:

1. The Amended Master Plan must be recorded with the
County Clerk’s office prior to Preliminary Plat.

2. An Affordable Housing Agreement must be prepared
and submitted for consideration by the Board of County
Commissioners along with the Final Plat and/or
Development Plan for the projects first development
phase.

3. The Applicants shall meet all Preliminary and Final Plat
and Development Plan requirements for each phase.

4. The Applicants shall construct the Community Water
and Community Sewer system with Phase 1.

EXHIBITS:

Letter of Request/Developer’s Report
Developer’s Plans

Review Agency Letters

December 13, 2011 BCC Meeting Minutes
February 9, 2010 BCC Meeting Minutes
November 20, 2014 CDRC Meeting Minutes
Letters of Support

Aerial Photo of Site and Surrounding Areas

9 Al S

102 Grant Avenue - P.O. Box 276 - Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 - 505-986-6200 -
FAX: 505-995-2740 www.santafecountynm.gov



CommeonwealConservancy

October 15, 2014

Vicki Lucero

Building and Development Service Manager
Santa Fe County

102 Grant Street

Santa Fe, NM 87501

RE: Revised Letter of Intent for the Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve (aka
“Trenza”) Amended Master Plan

Dear Vicki:

This letter serves as a revised “letter of intent” associated with Commonweal
Conservancy’s amended master plan application for the Village at the Galisteo Basin
Preserve (aka “Trenza™).

In response to Mr. Vicente Archuleta’s email dated October 2, 2014, we have attached
the following documents and plan drawings for your review and consideration:

i) a Parks, Open Space and Trails Plan with an accompanying 24 x 36” map
showing the Preserve’s existing publicly accessible trail network within the proposed
Planning Envelope;

ii) an Affordable Housing Plan; and

iii) a revised site plan showing the Southern Crescent subdivision lot lines which
were not included in Commonweal’s initial amended master plan application.

In addition, this letter of intent and its attachments offer background and context for a set
of illustrative plans that were submitted to Santa Fe County on June 9 and August 20,
2014 including;:

* Revised Master Plan Planning Envelope illustration,

* Updated Water Storage Calculations letter from John Shomaker & Associates
(JSAI), dated August 8, 2014,

* Updated Water Budget from BioHabitats, dated August 12, 2014,

* Copy of the well log for Village Well No. I,

* Letter from the Office of the State Engineer approving Commonweal’s water
rights transfer application relating to the water demand for Trenza’s first phase of
development,

» Updated Water Availability Summary memo from Commonweal, dated August
20, 2014,

117 N. Guadalupe Street, Suite C, Santa Fe, NM 87501
505.982.0071 voice - 505.982.0270 fax
www.commonwealconservancy.org




* Revised “Bubble Diagram” dated August 14, 2014 with notes that reflect the
updated commercial and civic square footage and total water demand for the
amended master plan, and

* Revised Phasing Plan dated August 20, 2014 that updates a Plant Nursery/Storage
use to Storage Units only in Phase IB.

Collectively, these reports, letters and illustrations constitute Commonweal’s amended
master plan application for your consideration and use.

Development Approval History

Since 2003, Commonweal Conservancy has advanced an ambitious conservation-based
community development initiative known as the Galisteo Basin Preserve.

The Galisteo Basin Preserve is designed to conserve and restore more than 12,700 acres
of open space along the northern rim of the Galisteo Basin. Concurrently, the project
aspires to demonstrate a new model of environmentally responsible community building

— one that incorporates best practices of site planning, low impact engineering, green
building and efficient water and energy use.

The Village at the Galisteo Basin Preserve, known as “Trenza,” incorporates a mixed-
income, mixed-use development program within a 235-acre development envelope. The
tightly configured village development plan proposes a variety of housing types and
neighborhoods along with a mix of pedestrian-scale commercial and civic land uses.

The Village at the Galisteo Basin Preserve master plan (hereafter, “Trenza Master Plan”)
was recommended for approval by the County Development Review Commitiee (CDRC)
on March 15, 2007. Subsequently, the Trenza Master Plan won approval from the Board
of County Commissioners (BCC) on June 12, 2007.

The original Trenza Master Plan envisioned development of a New Urbanist/Traditional
Neighborhood Design community of 965 residential units and 150,000 square feet of
commercial, educational and civic land uses. The proposed village was sited within a
235-acre development envelope. It was designed to include an extensive network of
trails and open spaces within a 10,360-acre planning envelope.

On June 18, 2009, Commonweal Conservancy secured unanimous approval from the
CDRC for Trenza’s Phase I Preliminary Plat. The preliminary plat anticipated
development of 149 residential parcels and five non-residential lots within a 60-acre
building envelope. Subsequently, Trenza’s Phase I Preliminary Plat received unanimous
approval from the BCC on February 9, 2010.

Since 2010, Commonweal has elected to defer the preparation and submittal of a Phase
Final Plat application. To maintain its development rights, however, Commonweal

secured BCC approval for a three-year extension of its Phase I Preliminary Plat in
December 2011.
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An Evolving Conservation Development Strategy

In the face of a deep and protracted economic recession, Commonweal has been re-
evaluating its economic opportunities and development ambitions for Trenza and the
larger Galisteo Basin Preserve.

Among other revisions to the project’s original master plan, Commonweal secured
approval from Santa Fe County for a series of small lot subdivision plats in areas

originally targeted as open space within the 10,360-acre Trenza Master Plan Planning
Envelope.

In 2008, three parcels located approximately one mile south of Trenza, known as the East
Preserve, were approved for subdivision by the Land Use Division and the County
Attorney’s Office. In 2009, a Boundary Line Adjustment Plat reconfigured more than
seven existing “legal lots of record™ in an area known as the Conservation Ranches
South. In 2012, an additional 140-acre parcel in the East Preserve was approved for
subdivision.

Concurrent with the County’s approval of the East Preserve plat in 2008, Commonweal
agreed to prepare an amended master plan before proceeding with final plat development
approvals for Trenza. A note on the East Preserve Plat memorializes Commonweal’s
master plan amendment obligation.

Since 2009, sales of East Preserve and Conservation Ranches to conservation buyers
have allowed Commonweal to fund its operations, albeit at a reduced scale compared to
2004-07. Revenues from property sales and conservation easement tax credits have also
allowed the organization to fulfill its primary debt service obligations to its lenders.

Although the platting and sale of conservation ranches were not part of Trenza’s original
master plan, sales of carefully sited conservation properties have allowed the organization
lo maintain its operations while simultaneously sustaining its commitiment to landscape-
scale conservation outcomes.

Master Plan Amendment Rationale

In an effort to document the organization’s evolving land stewardship and community
development ambitions for Trenza, Commonweal prepared an amendment to the Master

Plan (hereafter, “Amended Master Plan”) for consideration by staff and the governing
bodies of Santa Fe County.

Herein, Commonweal proposes to reconfigure the Planning Envelope of the Trenza
Master Plan to address a perceived change in demand for master planned community
development offerings in Santa Fe County. Among other revisions, Commonweal
proposes to reduce the extent of the original Planning Envelope from 10,360 acres to
3,560 acres.



By voluntarily constraining the size and scale of the Planning Envelope, Trenza’s
community development densities will be measurably reduced from their original
allowance. That is, rather than pursue development of 965 homes and 150,000 square
feet of commercial, and civic land uses, this Amended Master Plan proposes a
development allowance of 450 homes and lots, along with 88,500 square feet of mixed
use, commercial and civic land uses. Although Trenza’s building envelope is still
expected to encompass an area of approximately 235-acres — consistent with the original
Master Plan approval - the density of development will be measurably reduced relative to
the organization’s existing approved plan.

Mirroring the changed size and scale of the Amended Master Plan, the project’s water
budget will be correspondingly reduced. Specifically, the water budget for Trenza's
development uses will involve a 78-acre/foot allocation for residential uses and 20.45-
acre/feet for mixed use, commercial and civic land uses. By this allocation, Trenza’s
projected water demand at full build out in 2026 would total 98.45 -acre/feet.

As presented in JSAI’s letter report to you and Karen Torres dated August 8, 2014, the
available water resources associated with the Amended Master Plan closely reflect the
development approvals communicated to the CDRC and BCC in 2007. By crediting
water supplies documented by JSAI in 2007 -- along with test well data from Village
Well No. I and County-approved hydrological zoning credits -- the water available for
Trenza’s 100-year development horizon totals 147.61 acre/feet per year.

The balance of property associated with the original Trenza Master Plan Planning
Envelope includes 6,800 acres (10,360-3,560 = 6,800). For purposes of this application,
the 6,800 acres excluded from Commonweal’s existing master plan (hereafter, the
“Excluded Property”) shall be zoned in accordance with Santa Fe County’s 2014
mapping and code approval process. Toward that end, Commonweal staff is working
with Robert Griego and Tim Cannon of the County’s Planning staff to assign zoning
classifications on the Excluded Property that are consistent with surrounding land uses,
and which advance Commonweal’s conservation vision for the Excluded Property, as
well as for the larger Preserve.

Other Plan Modifications

A less substantial, but still noteworthy, modification to the original Trenza Master Plan
involves a slightly changed location for a proposed Memorial Landscape (aka “Green
Cemetery™). As presented, the Memorial Landscape will be relocated to an area that
corresponds to an existing legal lot of record (i.e., Lot 9 Southern Crescent) to allow for
improved access from Morning Star Ridge Road.

No other elements of the original Trenza Master Plan (i.e., road configurations, water

supply, liquid waste system, utility development) are proposed for revision by this
Amended master plan application.

Development Phasing Modifications

As you will note, this Amended Master Plan application includes a revision to the
original five-phase development program for Trenza. By this application, six phases of



development are proposed that would take place over a period of 12 years. In the initial
phase of development, a residential neighborhood known as North Face (see Phase |
Preliminary Plat approvals for the Village at the Galisteo Basin Preserve) will include 11
residential units ranging in size from 750 sf'to 1,450 sf. The water demand of the
residential development is budgeted at 0.16 acre/feet per unit (11*0.16 = 1.74 ac/ft).

Separately, an 1]-acre Memorial Landscape/Green Cemetery is included in the initial
phase of development. Given the natural landscape objectives of this component of the

project, a water allocation equivalent to a single residence is projected for the cemetery at
0.16 acre/feet per year.

Additionally, a 10,000-square foot storage facility is proposed for the Special Use
Storage envelope located approximately 1/3 mile southeast of the North Face
neighborhood. The storage facility will be built in two phases. The facility’s first 5,000
square feet will be built in Phase 1B with the remaining square footage to be built in
Phase 3. The storage facility will be available to residents of Trenza as well as other
residents within the US 285/CR 41 corridor (i.e., Eldorado, Lamy, Galisteo). The facility
will be supplied with electrical power and a single water tap. The water budget

associated with the storage facility’s first phase is projected to be a nominal 0.07 ac/fi per
year.

Finally, with regard o a Special Use parcel located west of the Southern Crescent
neighborhood, a 60-seat community outdoor performance space/amphitheater is proposed
for development on an existing legal lot of record (i.e., Lot 8 Southern Crescent). The
amphitheater will be supported with a composting toilet facility and a two-faucet hand
washing facility. The water budget associated with the amphitheater is expected to be
minimal (i.e., 0.003 ac/ft), given the event calendar planned for the facility (i.e., 30
performance/educational/celebration events per year).

Elements of the Master Plan Remaining Unchanged

The following clements of Trenza’s original Master Plan submittal are not changing with
the amendment application.

Existing Conditions

The development site has not been developed and is still vegetated with pifion and juniper
trees, native shrubs and grasses.

Adjacent Properties

The 235-acre development area for Trenza is bounded on the north by the New Moon
Overlook neighborhood. The Southern Crescent neighborhood frames the proposed
community’s southeastern edge. Except for Lots 8 and 9, which are proposed as the
location for a 60-seat outdoor amphitheater and a Green Cemetery, respectively, the other
20 lots associated with the South Crescent are not included (nor impacted by) with this
Amended Master Plan application. The western boundary of Trenza is framed by vacant
open space lands. The eastern edge of the project is bounded by US 84-285.



Access

Access to Trenza is available from two existing roads that intersect US 84-285
approximately five miles south of Eldorado. Primary access will be from Astral Valley
Road; secondary/emergency access will be from New Moon Overlook Road. These two
access points will be connected through a looped road system within the development.
The original Master Plan was submitted to the State Department of Transportation (DOT)
and the County Public Works Department for review. The DOT stated that no further
analysis was required, however more extensive studies would be required as each phase
is submitted for platting and development. The County Public Works Department had no
comments.

Fire Protection

The Eldorado Fire District will provide fire protection service to Trenza’s homes and
residents. Commonweal has proposed to donate land to the Santa Fe County Fire
Department concurrently with the development’s implementation to facilitate the
SFCFD’s improved access and support to the project. Primary roads will be developed to
a standard that will allow emergency vehicle access to residential neighborhoods from at
least two directions.

In addition to its domestic water service purpose, Trenza’s water system will provide fire
protection to the community. Water tanks will be strategically placed along the northern
boundary of the development. Water mains will be sized to supply fire hydrants at a
maximum spacing of 1,000 feet in residential areas and 500 feet near commercial and
community structures, as specified by the Santa Fe County Fire Department.

As required by the County Fire Department, storage tanks and lines will be sized to
service fire flow and peak domestic demands. To accommodate a fire flow volume of
1,000 gpm for two hours ~ combined with the flow requirements for peak hour water
demand — storage capacity of 750,000 gallons will be required at build out.

Liquid Waste

Commonweal is proposing to construct a centralized wastewater treatment plant that
would process wastewater, as well as generate tertiary quality effluent for use in outdoor
irrigation and limited indoor domestic purposes. As currently conceived, treated effluent
would be delivered to lots via pressurized reuse lines. Such water sources would also be
available for use in on-site drip irrigation systems.

Dry Utilities

Over the past ten years, Commonweal worked with Public Service of New Mexico to
develop three-phase power and natural gas to support the adjoining community of New
Moon Overlook. Three-phase power was separately developed along New Moon
Overlook Road and Morningstar Ridge Road to support the electrical power needs of the
project. As the project develops, a “looped system” may be constructed by PNM to



ensure that power can be assigned to different pathways within the project and across the
region. Natural gas may also be extended from the New Moon Overlook to support the
fuel requirements of Trenza.

Solid Waste

Trenza’s future Homeowner’s Association will contract with a solid waste removal
service to serve the community.

Terrain Management/ Landscaping

The terrain management plan for Trenza is designed to mitigate the effects of stormwater
runoff, soil erosion, and/or wildlife habitat loss that could otherwise result from new
development.

Stormwater runoff will be addressed through a combination of “low impact design™ and
traditional engineering techniques. Trenza’s approach to low impact design will include
a number of techniques and strategies such as the limitation of the scale and extent of
impervious cover across the site, runoff dispersion, and use of pervious pavement as well
as swales, constructed wetlands, and roofiop rainwater harvesting. Traditional
engineered solutions could include the design and construction of gutters, drains, culverts
and detention ponds.

Slopes on the property range from 0-20+%. Except in isolated instances (i.e., special lot
circumstances and arroyo crossings), grading will not occur on slopes greater than 12
percent,

Archaeology

An archaeological survey was prepared and submitted to the County for review and
approval. The extensive survey and analysis by Southwestern Archaeological
Consultants of Santa Fe identified 39 archaeology sites within Trenza’s proposed 235-
acre building envelope. Three sites were given archaeological clearance. Thirty-six sites
will be overlaid with protective easements and remain undisturbed concurrently with the
project’s development.

Open Space

The Amended Master Plan includes a planning envelope of 3,560 acres. Trenza's
development will be clustered, however, within a 235-acre area of the larger planning
envelope. A community central park is planned for Trenza’s commercial and civic area.
Neighborhood parks are also planned to serve individual neighborhoods. Neighborhood
parks will be connected via an internal trail and pathway network to allow residents easy
access to other parks, open spaces, and natural areas associated with the project.

Trails will facilitate access throughout the village, as well as to communities located to
the north, south, and east of the Preserve. At present, the Preserve’s trail system supports
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25 miles of publically accessible hiking, mountain biking and equestrian uses. The trail
network circumscribes Trenza's planned neighborhoods — offering easy access for
residents to the larger trail system and open space resources of the Preserve.

In its fullest expression, the Preserve’s trail network is planned to include approximately
50 miles of publicly accessible biking, hiking, and equestrian paths. The Property’s trail
network is also part of a larger recreational initiative that Commonweal Conservancy is
championing in central Santa Fe County for hiking, biking, wildlife viewing/bird
watching, and equestrian use. This regional recreational initiative is proposed to be a
100-mile trail network that will link the Santa Fe County-owned Petroglyph Hill open
space property on the southwestern edge of the Galisteo Basin Preserve, through the
Preserve along its publicly accessible trails to the 18-mile Rail Trail that parallels the

Santa Fe Southern rail corridor and terminates at the historic railyard in downtown Santa
Fe.

Over the last six years, Commonweal has worked with Santa Fe County Open Space and
Trails staff to explore opportunities to link the Santa Fe Southern Rail Trail to the
Preserve’s trail system. In partnership with County staff, Commonweal is committed to
connecting the Preserve trails to a regional trail network that will serve Santa Fe County
residents and visitors. (See attached Parks, Open Space and Trails Plan for more
information.)

Affordable Housing

In conformance with Santa Fe County’s Affordable Housing Ordinance, 15 percent of the
community’s housing -- 68 of the 450 units -- will be affordable to Santa Fe households
earning up to 120 percent of SM Area Median Income (AMI). An affordable housing
agreement will be required with Phase I Plat/Development Plan application. (See the
attached Affordable Housing Plan for more information.)

Closing

I hope that you and your colleagues find this amended master plan application for the
Village at the Galisteo Basin Preserve (aka Trenza) consistent and appropriate for the
County’s community development ambitions for the region. My colleagues and 1 hope
that this narrative and its attachments demonstrate the organization’s commitment to
protecting the region’s open space, wildlife habitat, hydrologic and cultural resources,

while concurrently advancing a new model of environmentally responsible community
development.

e



Please feel free to contact me at 505.982.0071 ext 102 or by email at
ted.harrson@commonwealconservancy.org during your review of this application.

My colleagues and 1 look forward to presenting this amended master plan application to

the Santa Fe County Development Review Committee at its November 20, 2014 hearing,

Sincerely,

W]

Ted O. Harrison
President
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 25, 2014

TO: Vicente Archuleta, Development Review Team Leader
Vicki Lucero, Building and Development Services Manager

FROM: Robert Griego, Planning Manager

VIA: Penny Ellis-Green, Growth Management Director

FILE REF.: Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve “Trenza” Master Plan Amendment
ISSUE:

Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve received Master Plan Approval in 2007 and received a Master
Plan Amendment in 2009 on 10,360 acres for a mixed-use development consisting of 965
residential units and up to 150,000 sq. fi. of commercial, institutional, educational, and
recreational land uses as well as open space, parks, and trails. The Master Plan established the
development project within a 235 acre development area.

The project is now identified as “Trenza Master Plan”. This project is proposing to reduce the
approved Master Plan from 10,360 acres to 3,560 acres and reducing the total number of
residential units from 965 to 450 units within the 235 acre development area.

Staff Analysis: .

1. The application to amend the master plan proposes to:

a. reconfigure and reduce the area, (10,360 acres), to 3,560 acres.

b. Develop 450 units and 88,500 sq ft of commercial/civic development within a 235
acre development envelop on the reconfigured/ reduced area of 3,560 acres. The
residential gross density will be approximately 1 unit per 7 acres and the net
residential density will be approx. 1 unit per .5 acres. Proposed densities within the
development envelop range from 1 to 25 units per acre suggesting a variety of
housing types and compact development.

2. The Proposed Master Plan Amendment would result in the remaining 6,800 acres of the
existing Master Plan to be without a Master Plan. The remaining acreage without a Master
Plan would revert to the underling hydrogic zones until such time as the SLDC Zoning
Map is approved
Affordable Housing----The developer has not submitted an affordable housing plan.

4, The adopted master plan (2007) was not concurrently amended to accommodate residential

subdivisions administratively approved in 2008-2009.

had
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RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:

1.

2

The Affordable Housing Plan will need to be approved as a condition for the Master Plan
Amendment.

. Any zoning request for the “remainder” areas should submitted as a separate application

following zoning procedures, {master plan process if application is made under the 1996-
10 or rezoning process if application is made under the SLDC — zoning assignments on the
Zone Map Adoption Draft should not be the result of individual petitions).

Master Plan needs to address residential subdvisions administratively approved in 2008-
2009.
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Daniel “Danny" Mayfield

Kathy Holizn
Commissioner, District |

Commissioner, District 4

Miguel M. Chavez Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, District 2 Cammissioner, District 5
Robert A. Anays Katherine Miller

Commissioner, District 3 County Manager

Septembe;' 16,2014

To:  Vicente Archuleta, Development Review Team Leader
From: Karen Torres, County Hydrologist @

Re: CDRC Case # 06-5033 Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve (aka “Trenza™) Master Plan
Amendment,

The subject master plan amendment was reviewed for technical accuracy and compliance with
the SFC Land Development Code. The applicant has met the code requirements for Master Plan,

Additional submittals necessary for Preliminary and Final Development Plan are outlined in this
conclusions of this memo.

Project Description

The applicant is requesting an amendment to existing master plan approved by the BCC in June
of 2007. The amendment proposed a reduction in the original residential development from 965
to 450 dwelling units and a reduction in area designated as mixed use, commercial and civic land
from 150,000 to 65,000 square feet. The development will be served by the creation of a new
community water and sewer system. Phase I of this development includes 11 residential dwelling
units, an 11 acre Memorial Landscape / Green Cemetery and a 10,000 square foot nursery
/storage facility with an estimated water budget of 1.97 acre-feet.

Master Plan Requirements for Water

Article V, Section 5.2.2 g, Master Plan Procedures, as amended by Ordinance 2005-2, requires a
master plan report to include the following:

1. A preliminary water supply plan and liquid waste disposal plan which identifies the
source of water, water budget by phase and water conservation plan,

2. Submission of a water supply plan for the first sustainable phase of development, as
required by Article VII, Section 6 of the Code. Water right permits are not required for
master plan but sufficient written documentation that water rights are available for Phase
I of the development is required.

102 Grant Avenue P.0. Box 276 Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-1985 www.santafecounty.org
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Article Vil, Section 6 — Phase I Only Water Supply Plan Requirements for Master Plan

Article VII, Section 6.2 entitled General Requirements and Submittals for a Water Supply Plan
sets forth requirements based on the type and scale of the development. Table 7.4, entitled
Reguired Code Sections for Water Supply, states subdivisions required to have community water

systems as listed on Article V Section 9 Table 5.1, which applies to the subject development, is
reguired to submit a water supply plan which consists of submittals compliant with the following
code requirements:

Article VII, Section 6.2.2 entitled “Required Water Right Permits”

Article VII, Section 6.3 Community Water Systems

Article VII, Section 6.4.1 entitled “Requirements for Water Availability Assessments”
Article VII, Section 6.5 entitled “Water Quality”

Article VII, Section 6.6 entitled “Water Conservation”

Article VII, Section 6.7 entitled “Fire Protection”

LR

Each code section will be addressed separately as to compliance for Phase I only. Subsequent
phases will require a separate review by county staff.

Article VII, Section 6.2.2 entitled “Required Water Right Permits®”

This article states for all subdivisions containing 20 or more parcels any one of which are 2 acres

or less in size, the subdivider shall provide proof that the person providing water has a valid
water right permit.

The Office of the State Engineer approved Permit No. SP-1121-N-A into RG-88989 et al on
March 21%, 2014. This allows for the diversion of 5.0 acre-feet of water with a consumptive use
of 2.1 acre-feet per year from one existing (Village Well No. 1) and three proposed wells. The
Purpose of Use was approved for domestic, livestock, imrigation, municipal and commercial
purposes and has a priority date of October 26, 1940. There are sufficient water rights permitted
in well RG-88989 aka Village Well No. 1 to serve Phase I of this development.

This code requirement for water right permits has been met for Phase I of this
development.

Article VII, Section 6.3: Water Supply Plan - Community Water Systems

This article states community water systems shall be required for subdivisions according to the
number and size of lots as indicated in Article V Section 9.3, Table 5.1. From Table 5.1
developments that propose between 100+ lots between the size of less than 1 acre to 10.0 acres
are required to have a community water and sewer system to serve the project. The code has
specific requirements for submittals and review of community systems as follows:

Village at Galisteo Preserve (aka Trenza) 20of7
CDRC #Z 06-5033 September 16, 2014
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Requirements for Community Water Systems under Article VII, Section 6.3.1

6.3.1a: When a community water system is required, the developer shall provide water from
existing or proposed water supply systems for domestic use, fire protection, and any other use
that the developer proposes.

6.3.1b: The developer shall provide for the completion of the proposed water supply systems, in
accordance with applicable minimum design standards of the New Mexico Environment
Department and the Construction Industries Division.

6.3.1c: The developer shall meet fire flow requirements set forth in Article VII Section 6.7.

6.3.1d: The developer shall provide sufficient potable water for full development of all properties
within the proposed development.

6.3.1e: If the development is in a Traditional Community District, the community water system
shall be designed to minimize the use of local water resources. The applicant shall obtain water
rights as the State Engineer requires, The community water system shall be consistent with the
Local Land Use and Utility Plan, if any.

6.3.1f: All distribution mains shall be a minimum of six inches in diameter

6.3.1g: It shall be noted on the final plat and plans and in the covenants and disclosure statement
that the drilling or use of individual or shared wells is strictly prohibited.

6.3.1h: The developer shall meet all applicable requirements of the Public Utility Act Articles 1
through 6 and 8 through 13 of Chapter 62 NMSA 1978.

Submittals for Community Water Systems Article VII, Section 6.3.2

The applicant shall submit a water supply plan which demonstrates that the [water] system will
comply with the requirements of Section 6.3.1 of Article VIL. The water supply plan shall be
prepared by or under the supervision of a professional engineer and shall include the following:

6.3.2a: Information showing the volume and peak rate of production of water required for each
month to supply each use at full use of the development

6.3.2b: Plans and specifications for production or diversion, storage and distribution facilities
and a time schedule for their completion, prepared by or under the supervision of a registered
professional engineer.

6.3.2c: A legal description of the location of all construction easements and right-of-way
necessary for the installation of the water supply system.

Village at Galisteo Preserve (aka Trenza) 3of7
CDRC #Z 06-5033 September 16, 2014
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6.3.2d: Well plans indicating casing diameter, total depth, screened interval and proposed pump
setting.

6.3.2e: An agreement providing for:

i. The construction and operation of the water supply system as shown in the plat
documents and plans

ii. Collateral, in the form of a performance bond or other means, adequately assure
the complete construction and operation of the system in accordance with design
and time specifications.

ili. Certification of the operator of the system

iv. Involvement as prescribed in the plat documents of a Homeowner’s Association,
Mutual Domestic Association; or non-profit' corporation for the purpose of
operation and maintenance of the system.

6.3.2f: If the developer is within a declared basin, the applicant shall obtain a valid water right
permit issued by the State Engineer pursuant to Section 6.2.2 of this section.

Though Article VII Section 6.3 code section is technically part of the submittal of a Water
Supply Plan for Phase I of this development but it is recommended these items be
addressed by the applicant at Preliminary and Final Development Plan appioval.

Requirements for Water Availability Assessments - Article VII, Section 6.4.1

Article VII Section 6.4.1a states “For developments where the source of water wiil be a new
community well and community water system permiﬁed pursuant to Section 72-12-3 the
applicant shall demonstrate a one hundred year supply and shall submit a gechydrologic report
and other information in accordance with Article VII Section 6.4.2 or a reconnaissance water
availability assessment in accordance with Section 6.4.6 if applicable.”

Water Availability Assessments For New Community Wells and Community Water
Systems - Article VII, Section 6.4.2,

Article VII, Section 6.4.2 states the applicant shall submit a water availability assessment, this is
only required for the first sustainable phase of the development at Master Plan Level. Such an
assessment includes the following:

Village at Galisteo Preserve (aka Trenza) 4 of7
CDRC #Z 06-5033 September 16, 2014
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6.4.2a - Geohydrologic Report Demonstration of Physical Water Overview

A comprehensive gechydrologic report entitled “Hydrologic Report for the Galisteo Basin
Preserve, Santa Fe County, New Mexico September 2006 was initially submitted to
demonstrate water availability. Portions of this report were subsequently amended 5 times to
reflect new data and/or changes to the original master plan. Based on the June 8, 2007 letter by
JS&A to Ted Harrison regarding results from drilling, construction, and testing an exploratory
well full scale production well (Village Well #1) at the Galisteo Basin Preserve a production of
50 gpm and the drilling of three additional wells was recommended.

The applicant has met this requirement Article VII Section 6.4.2a for Phase L.
6.4.2b - Sufficient Exploratory Wells

For type Il subdivisions, one exploratory well shall be made within the development.
The applicant has met this requirement Article VII Section 6.4.2b for Phase L
6.4.2c ~ Calculated 100 year schedule of effects (Amended by Ordinance 2005 -2)

Calculations of 100 year drawdown were described in the June 8, 2007 letter by JS&A to Ted
Harrison regarding the Village Well #1. It appears the OSE methodology was used based on the
Morrison criteria not requirements of the SFC Land Development Code. Based on this method a
sustainable production of 50 gpm for 100 years was estimated. Due to the small amount of water
required for Phase I (1.97 acre-feet) of this development this method is acceptable but additional
calculations of regional decline, drawdown on adjoining properties and submission of model
runs for staff review is requested for subsequent phases.

The applicant has met the requirement of Article VII Section 6.4.2c for Phase I but
submission of model runs used to determine the regional and long-term drawdown is
requested for preliminary and final development of subsequent phases.

6.4.2d — Lowest Practical Pumping Level

This section of the code requires an additional 20% reduction of the total available water column
calculated in the previous section. Since the 100 year schedule of effects could not be properly
verified it cannot be determined at this point if this reduction will impact the proposed
production rate of this well. This is not seen as an issue for Phase I of this development due to
the low amount of water required but this code section should be addressed for subsequent
phases of this development.

The applicant has met the requirement of Article VII Section 6.4.2d for Phase I but
updated calculations of lowest practical pumping level is requested for preliminary and
final development of subsequent phases.
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6.4.2e — Contents of Geohydrologic Report

Based on the original submittal in 2006 and subsequent amendments this code requirement
has been met,

6.4.2 f— Density Calculation pursuant to Article III Section 10.2.

On August 8, 2014 a letter to Vicki Lucero from JS&A revised previous calculations for water is
storage to reflect the revised planning envelope. Through the drilling of the Village Well No. 1
(RG-88989) the applicant’s consultant has used the Land Use Code water storage equation to
estimate water in storage in an area called Aquifer A. A summary is as follows:

Water in Storage = Acres of Land (340) x Specific Yield (0.09) x Saturated Thickness (448) x
Reliability Factor (1.0) x Recovery Factor (0.8) = 10,967 acre-feet

Availability is defined as storage (10,967 acre-feet)/ acres of land (340) x 100 years = 0.32 acre-
foot per acre per year or 109.7 acre-feet per year for 100 years,

Based on this submittal, the applicant has demonstrated sufficient water availability in
Aquifer A to serve the proposed development. Water from this area will be conveyed to the
development area approximately two miles to the southwest of well RG-88989.

Article VII, Section 6.5 entitled “Water Quality”

Lab report dated May 4™ 2007 for the Village Well No 1 shows exceedances for EPA Secondary
Drinking Water Standards for fluoride, total dissolved solids, pH.

The applicant is required to disclose in the disclosure statement on water quality the name
of the contaminant, the contaminant level, the EPA SMCL, the expected adverse effects
and the recommended treatment method. This can be accomplished as part of the Final
Development Plan for Phase 1.

Article VII, Section 6.6 entitled “Water Conservation”

A water budget by phase for the entire development was submitted for review which describes
the average residential usage as 0.16 and 0.17 acre-foot per year with 20 acre-feet designated for
commercial development. At master plan level this summary water budget is acceptable but a
better understanding of outdoor water usage will be required for preliminary and final
development approval.
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For Phase I a combination of storage / nursery facility is proposed and has an estimated
water usage of 0.07 acre-foot per year. Further clarification of the nursery portion of this
facility is requested for review as a part of the submission of the Phase I Preliminary Plat.

Article V11, Section 6.7 entitled “Fire Protection™

This section to be addressed by the County Fire Department.

Conclusions

The applicant has met the code requirements for Master Plan. Additional submittals necessary
for Preliminary and Final Development Plan are as follows:

1. Submission of necessary submittals for Article VII Section 6.3 code section for

Phase I of this development with request for Preliminary and Final Development
Plat approval.

2. The applicant has met the requirement for Article VII Section 6.4.2¢ for Phase I but
submission of model runs used to determine the regional and long-term drawdown
is requested for preliminary and final development of subsequent phases.

3. The applicant has met the requirement of Article VII Section 6.4.2d for Phase I but
updated calculations of lowest practical pumping level is requested for preliminary
and final development of subsequent phases.

4. The applicant is required to disclose in the disclosure statement on water quality the
name of the contaminant, the contaminant level, the EPA SMCL, the expected
adverse effects and the recommended treatment method. This can be accomplished
as part of the Final Development Pilan for Phase L.

5. Further clarification of the water demand for the nursery portion of the storage
facility described in Phase I is requested for review as a part of the submission of the
Phase I Preliminary Plat.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 992-9871 or email at kiorres@co.santa-
fe.nm.us
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Office of Affordable Housing

MEMORANDUM
DATE: October 24, 2014
TO: Vicente Archuleta, Development Review Team Leader
FROM: Steven Brugger, Affordable Housing Administrator

SUBJECT: Case# S 06-5033 Galisteo Basin Preserve (Trenza) Master Plan Amendment

Sumlhary of Applicant’s Affordable Housing Proposal

The Applicant’s Affordable Housing Plan proposes to meet the 15% affordable housing
requirement for this 450 unit development by building 68 affordable units, with 17
affordable units in each of the required four income tiers: 0-65% Area Median Income
(AMI); 66%-80% AMI; 81%-100% AMI and 101%-120% AMI.

The Applicant’s Affordable Housing Plan meets the requirements of the Affordable
Housing Ordinances 2006-02 and 2012-1 and the Affordable Housing Regulations enabled
by Resolution 2010-189 in terms of number and distribution of affordable units proposed,
integration, phasing, marketing and sales, product mix, and minimum square footage
requirements.

This Affordable Housing Plan is acceptable to the Affordable Housing AdministTator and
can be integrated into an|affordable housing agreement that the Applicant must provide as

part of its final plat and/or development application for the first development phase of this
project.

Detailed staff comments, by issue area, are presented below along with staff findings
highlighted in bold text.

Staff Comments

Number of Affordable Units: Applicant is required to provide 68 affordable units; this
number is calculated by applying the 15% affordable housing requirement per Ordinance
2012-1 to this 450 unit project. In the Affordable Housing Plan, the Applicant has
proposed 68 affordable units which meets this requirement.

23



Distribution of Affordable Units: Per the methodology of Section 3.1.2 of the Affordable
Housing Regulations, the Applicant must provide 17 affordable units in Income Range 1
(0% to 65% of the Area Median Income); 17 affordable units in Income Range 2 (66% -
80% of the Area Median Income); 17 affordable units in Income Range 3 (81% - 100% of
the Area Median Income) and 17 affordable units in Income Range 4 (101% to 120% of the
Area Median Income). In the Affordable Housing Plan, the Applicant meets this
distribution requirement.

Maximum Target Home Prices: The purchase prices to be paid by the affordable buyers for
the units shall not exceed the Maximum Target Home Prices by housing type and Income
Range, per the Affordable Housing Regulations. The Applicant shall comply with this
requirement as part of its Affordable Housing Agreement. In addition, the Applicant
shall comply with Section 3.2.2 of the Affordable Housing Regulations which states
that the Maximum Target Home Prices shall be adjusted downward if an HOA fee
exceeds $100 per month, so that the affordable buyer’s mortgage loan principal
amount is reduced by the amount the monthly HOA fee exceeds $100.

Minimum Bathrooms and Square Footage Requirements: Per Section 3.2.6.1 of the
Affordable Housing Regulations, a two bedroom unit must have at least 1 bathroom and
have a minimum of 1,000 square feet of heated space; a three bedroom unit must have at
least 2 bathrooms and have a minimum of 1,150 square feet of heated space; and a four
bedroom unit must have at least 2 bathrooms and have a minimum of 1,250 square feet of
heated space. In the Affordable Housing Plan, the Applicant meets the minimum
square footage requirements. The Applicant shall comply with the minimum number
of bathrooms, by housing type, as part of its Affordable Housing Agrecement.

Integration of Affordable Units: Per Section 3.2.6.4. of the Affordable Housing
Regulations, affordable units shall be integrated with market units in the project and shall
be compatible with market units in terms of architecture, exterior materials and
landscaping. In the Affordable Housing Plan, the Applicant has stated its intent to
integrate affordable units with market units and to develop all units with consistent
architecture, materials and landscaping. The final plat and/or development plan for
the project and each of its phases must identify the lots that are designated as
affordable units. This must be incorporated into the Affordable Housing Agreement.

Mix of Unit Sizes and Types: Section 3.2.7 of the Affordable Housing Regulations
prescribe an affordable housing mix of 50% 3 bedroom units, 25%, 2 bedroom units, and
25% 4 bedroom units, although the Affordable Housing Administrator may adjust the
proposed mix, with BCC approval. In the Affordable Housing Plan, the Applicant meets

the prescribed mix of units. It is understood that this mix may not be uniform across
cach phase,

Phasing of Affordable Home Construction: Section 4E of the Affordable Housing
Ordinance 2006-02 states that affordable units must be developed and offered for sale in
proportion to the number of market rate units which are developed and offered for sale. In
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the Affordable Housing Plan, the Applicant has stated that each development phase
will meet the 15% affordable housing requirement.

Affordable Housing Agreement: An Affordable Housing Agreement must be prepared
and submitted for consideration by the Board of County Commissioners along with
the final plat and/or development plan for the project’s first development phase.
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 3, 2014

TO: Vicente Archuleta, Development Review Team Leader
FROM: Maria Lohmann, Open Space and Trails Planner

Planning Division, Growth Management Department
VIA: Robert Griego, Planning Division Manager, Growth Management Department

RE: CASE #5 06-5033 Galisteo Basin Preserve ("Trenza”) Master Plan amendment

| have reviewed the case submittal for technical accuracy and for compliance with the
Sustainable Growth Management Plan {SGMP), and | have the following comments:

Background/Summary

o The Trenza Master Plan envisioned development of a New Urbanist/ Traditional
Neighborhood community of residential, commercial, educational and civic 1and uses. It
is planned to include an extensive network of trails and opep space. The master plan
amendment included a parks, trails, and open space plan. This plan includes a robust
network of trails, open spaces and parks “designed to cultivate a culture of
environmental stewardship.” This is consistent with SGMP open space and trails
policies.

o Policy 22.1: New open space and park facilities should be established to match
demands of population growth and expansion.

o Policy 22.2: Protect significant lands including: scenic vistas, environmentally
sensitive areas (such as flood hazard areas, hillsides above 11% grade, areas
accessible or adjacent to rivers, streams, creeks and springs, acequias, wildlife
habitat or migration corridors) and areas of important native vegetation,
archaeological, historic, agricultural areas, and ranch lands.

= Strategy 22.2.1: Open Space that is preserved through clustering of
development will be preferentially located on the most environmentally
sensitive area of the site and should be interconnected with open space

26



on adjacent properties when possible.

o Policy 22.5: Support partnerships with other governmental agencues, Pueblos,
non-profits, non-governmental agencies and private' interests 10 permanently
protect open space, parks, trails, recreation area, enwronmentatl‘{ sensitive and
natural resource areas.

o Policy 22.7: Establish an interconnected system of trails and parks, with regional
trail and park connections for pedestrians, equestrians and cyclists.

o Policy 22.12: Support community-based stewardship of open spaces, trails and
public spaces.

o Additional documents provided by Commonweal Conservancy demonstrate the
continued vision for the development.

o The deed of conservation easement demonstrates a viable connection from
Commonweal Conservancy property to County-owned Thornton Ranch Open
Space along the Burlington Northern/ NM DOT rail easement.

o Aletter from Ted Harrison assures County staff that while the original plans have
changed due to the recession, the new scheme is largely in conformance with
the founding vision, in that more than 95% of the land will remain undeveloped
and conservation easements will allow for publicly accessible trails.

Recommendations
o Staff recommends approval of the master plan amendment.
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XV. A 4. BCC Case # MIS 06-5032 Trenza Time Extension.
Commonweal Conservancy, Inc., Applicant, Ted Harrison,
Agent, Request a 36-Month Time Extension of the Previously
Approved Preliminary Plat and Development Plan for Phase I
of the Trenza Development (aka the Village at Galisteo Basin
Preserve) Which Consists of 131 Single-Family Resident Lots
and Three Multi-Family Residential Lots for a Total of 149
Residential Units, and Five Non-Residential Lols within a 60
Acre Developmeat Envelape within an Overall 18,000+ Acre
Arca, The Property is Located South of Eldorade, West of US
285, within Sections 1, 3-5, 7-15, 17, 20-24, and 27 within
Township 14 North, Range 9 Enst; Sections 5-7, and 18 within
Township 14 North, Range 1# East; Sections 25 and 34-36,
within Township 15 North, Range 9 East; and Sections 30 and
31, within Township 15 North, Range 10 East (Commission
District 3) Vicki Lucero, Case Manager

CHAIR VIGIL: Vicki Luccro, Case Planner, it’s &l] yours.

VICKI LUCEROQ (Case Planner): Thank you, Madam Chair. On
June 12, 2007 the BCC granted master plan zoning approval for a mixed-use
development consisting of 965 residential units, 150,000 square feef of commercial,

institutional, educational and recreational land uses, and open space, parks and trails on
10.316 acres.

On February 9, 2010 the BCC granted preliminary plat and development plan
approval for Phase I of the referenced subdivision which consisted of 131 single-family
residential lots and three multi-family residential lots for a total of 149 residential units
and five non-residential lots within a 60-acre development envelope. This approval is set
to expirc on February 9, 2012,

Article V, Section 5.3.6 of the County Land Development Code states: “An
approved or conditionally approved preliminary plat shall expire 24 months afler its
approval of conditional approval. Prior to the expiration of the preliminary plat the
subdivider may request from the Board an extension of the preliminary plat for a period
of time not exceeding 36 months.

The Applicants state that since the BCC's approval of the preliminary plat the
national and local real estate market has suffered a devastating decline in valuation and
dernand. Residential development, especially master planned communities have been
particularly hard hit. In an effort to protect their development approvals Commonweal is
requesting 8 36-month extension of its preliminary plat approval. During the extension
period the applicant believes that the market for Trenza will have increasingly strong
market appeal and financing. A 36-month time extension will allow Commonweal to

prepare a master plan amendment and final plat application for Phase I before February
of 2015.
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Recommendation: There have been no major changes in the ordinances that
govemn this arca since the time of the previous approvals for this development. Therefore
County staff recornmends the BCC grant an cxiension of the prior approval as requested
by the Applicant,

Madam Chair, I just wanled to state for the record that staff has handed out a
stack of letters of support for this project. fExhibit 5] Thank you, Madam Chair.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: 1°d like to clarify a few things. First of
ail, today we passed a néw ordinance, and Steve, could you clarify whether or not that
new ordinance relatcs to this request?

MR. ROSS: Madam Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, it certainly could,
because that ordinance provndes for extensions of time just like this in the event of
economic circumstance which by rcsoluuon we alrcady declared exists. So yes, it could
relate to that. There’s becn no apphcamm and there’ s no resolution under the ordinance
to process pursuant 16 the ordinahce, but it certainly is thé same issue.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So Madam Chair, Steve, could we
actually make & detertnination tonight different than whal's being requested to identify
the issue of economic hardship or economic — yes, economic hardship and to grant a four-
year extension?

MR. ROSS: Madam Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, we couild not
probably grant a four-year extension of a preliminary plat because only threc years are
authorized by the Subdivision Act but aside from that, yes,

CHAIR VIGIL: Steve, on that, doesn’t an ordinance take cffect 30 days
afler? Or could we aciually approve this tenight? .

MR. ROSS: [ don’t know that you could approve it on those grounds
tonight, but you certainly could in 30 days, well before the expiration. And the other
thing about the ordinance that was ¢nacted today is it admits approvals to be reinstated,
things that have already expired can be revived. That’s the word [ was looking for, even
after they’re expired, which is a departure from how we’ve handled these in the past.

CHAIR VIGIL: So, on thal point, let me just finish my line of questioning.
Is this case ripe for moving for moving forward with that? And naturally, we're trying to
create a larger benefit for you ih terms of extension, so don’t — that's where we're going.
Isit?

TTOZ/20/20 THALOOHY HMIHETD DAL

MR.. ROSS: Well, you couldn’t — what we’d need is an application from
the developer and a resolution prepared consistent with the resolution and ordinance we
passed (oday. So no, it wouldn’t be — you wouldn’t want to grant it on those grounds
tonight, but you certainly could in 30 days.

CHATIR VIGIL: Okay. Go ahead. 1 was responding on the point she was
giving. I'll give it to you and then you,

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So further clarification - thank you,
Madam Chair, for your questions. Steve, we could in fact procecd with the request we
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have in front of us and the project in the future could expire, and they could approach us
again with an application for economic hardship.

MR. ROSS; Carrect.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Based upon what we passed today,

MR. ROSS: Correct.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you very much. Thank you,
Madam Chair,

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Madam Chair. My question was
answered.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, I was just going to say this
request is before the expiration so it’s complelely different than what we talked about
today because what we talked about today was when & plan expires. Right? Just for
clarification.

CHAIR VIGIL: And I think wouldn’t the applicant want lo come to us
before it expired?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Right. Right. That's what I'm clarifying,
that they’re just distinctly different because they haven’t expired. [ guess my other
comment would be, along with what we talked about today in the previous discussion
relative to expired plats, there could be other things that the Commission may want the
applicant to consider as far as conditions now that might be different that what previously
cxisted, right? We can do that, T guess is what I'm suggesting,

MS. LUCERQ: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that's correct. 1 also
wanted to mention that the applicants will have to come back to the BCC for their final
plat approval. So you'll have another opportunity to see the project one more time before
the first phase gets approved.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So Madam Chair, in our previous approval,
and I think it was Commissioner Holian that brought it up. She brought up in a master
plan that was claiming hardship, we could still look at the master plan and add conditions
if we deemed appropriate, right?

MS. LUCERQ: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, and Mr. Ross can
jump in and correct me if I'm wrong but it’s my understanding that you can add
additional conditions st this point if you so choose to as part of the master plan extension.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So, Madam Chair, this is a public hearing,

CTOTA/C0/00 QHOHODHY HEdTD D48

right?

CHAIR VIGIL: Yes, it is.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So there's a lot of people here from
Galisteo; I'd like to hear feedback from them and then I may have some more comments,

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Vicki, ! think we’re going to put you on hold for
this. Is the applicant herc? And would you like to address the Commission on anything.
Good evening, Scott.
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SCOTT HOEFT: Good evening.

[Duly swom, Scott Hoeft testified as follows:)

MR, HOEFT: Scott Hoeft, Santa Fe Planning Greup, 109 St. Francis,
Santa Fe, 87505. Just a point of clarification. The reason why we're here tonight is
because we were a little bit uncertain of the ordinance. So what we did was follow proper
procedurc. Before our case is expired in February of next year we!ve gone in with an
extension, a three-year request. We do have master plan approval that dates back to 2007,
We received preliminary plat approval roughly two years ago and that’s why we’re here
this evening requesting an extension due to economic hardship reasons.

The point of clarification, before [ turn it over is just simply when we went
through this last time we did agree to a condition that you may or may not remember that
this development will be subject to the Santa Fe County's Sustainable Deyelapment Plan
and development code. So that’s already one of our conditions. And then we will be back
in front of you with a final development plan and plat when the project is ready lo
proceed, That's all I'have for now.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you very much. This is a public hearing. Does
anyone have questions for Scott?

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL; Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Scott. 1 just have a question
about the water. What is the siluation now with the water riphts and so on?

MR. HOEFT: The applicant is still proceeding with the process of the
waler rights transfer to the well. It's still an ongoing process.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: This is a public pfocess. Is anyone here to speak on behalf
of this project? Anyone against? Okay. Please state your name and address for the record,
and you need to be sworn in.

[Duiy swom, I.J, Milder testified as follows:]

1.J. MILDER: ].J. Milder, and I live in Galisteo on 52 West Basin Ridge,
which is parl of the West Basin Preserve, which is part of this larper Commonweal
project. I want to speak in support of the extension. I think what you heard from the
Galisteo representatives in terms of community values and principles, protecting open
space, Commonweal and their plan is very consistent and one of the things that I
recognize, and I've worked with Commonweal along with my husband for almost seven
years from the time that we bought the land to now our building our permanent residence
is that it's an organization with Ted Harrison’s leadership of high integrity, very
forthright, and I think does a tremendous job of balancing the economic potential gain for
the ranching family, recognizing it's almost 17,000 acres of ranch land, and for them to
realize their assct value, but balancing the realization of that value with a community and
a program that ultimately avails the vast majority of the land to everyone, whelher it's
trails, what have you, with the recognition of preserving the open space providing low
income housing, creating a community all the time, protecting the visual sight lines.
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So I'm very much in support. 1 think that through the many years and the work of
this project that Ted and his tearn have been very forthright, very conscientious and
thorough in their research and communication, obviously water is a concern, and I think
there are many other potential projects that might come down the pike where Galisteo
and the viewscapes are concerned that would be very disturbing. So I just hope that you'll
extend.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you very much. This is a public
hearing, Is there anyone ¢lsc that would like to speak in favor of or against? How many
people would like 1o speak? We should swear everybody in at once. Okay, would you all
please stand and come forward and our recorder will swear everybody in at once,

[Those wishing to speak were placed under cath.]
[Duly sworn, Fred Milder testified as follows:]

FRED MILDER: Commissioners, ] am Fred Milder. I’'m the other half of
the woman that you just heard speak to you, and [ would also like to very strongly
support the extension. We were actually the first people to buy land from Commonweal
as part of the beginning of their development and ever since that time back in 2005 I
believe it was they have done nothing but continue to supporl what we all value — the
viewshed, the open space. They’ve committed land to hiking trails and equestrian trails in
conjunction with their work and the Santa Fe Conservation Trust. They had land
eventually bought by the County Lo help preserve Petroglyph Hill, which is aver in our
area.

IS 248

The water testing again and again and again, so basically, 1 think they share all of
our concerns and zll of our values and they’ve done nothing bul support those things in
their continued development and their continued planning,. It’s a shame that it hasn't gone
faster but such are the economic conditions of today, and I would just support the
extension.

THETEOIEY

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you. Next speaker please.
[Previously swomn, Muriel Fariello testified as follows:]

MUREIL FARIELLO: My name is Muriel Fariello. I'm the vice president
of the Galisteo Community Association. I'm the secretary-treasurer for the Ranchitos de
Galisteo Water Users Assaciation. What I’m here for is not so much to say, don’t do this
cxtension but originally when this plan was approved the Commonweal, Ted Harrison,
had gotten epproval for the Buckman project to provide water for them and T wanted to
know what the status of that is. Rather than drill wells up there and pump water down that
could affect Galisteo.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Speaking on behalf of the Commission
no conditions have changed. So the conditions that were put in place on Commonweal
are still in place. Okay? Next person please. There were two mare.

[Previously sworn, Rod Hall testified as follows:]

ROD HALL: My name is Rod Hall, I'm the president of the Galisteo
Water Association, I bave two points. When the original approval happened discussion
about water was cut off because the County promised to supply the development with
water. We are currently before the State Engineer. A hearing has been stayed over
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technicalities. We're going into mediation Thursday, but we're still arguing about the
transfer of water rights, questionable water rights from dewnstream to upstream, If
remember right, the conditions or the situation that originaily happened when you guys
approved this was that they would be on County water and not be pumping water out of
an area that already has major problems.

Cne other point that doesn’t concern water. [ belicve there was a condition that
was pub on the project to change the name and I think they agreed to drop the Galisteo
part of the name. From what we've seen they’ve got a brand new sipn that’s got Galisteo
Besin Preserve, :

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: We'll ask about that in a minute.

MR. HALL: Okay. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Great, Thank you. Lucy, 1 think you're
the last person.

[Previously sworn, Lucy Lippard {estified as follows:)

LUCY LIPPARD: I'm not going to get into the technicalities but I was on
a committee for a couple of years that was dealing with Commonweal in terms of the
water and the dangers to Galisteo, and I have never seen & developer bend over
backwards to accommodate a village. We thought we had an agreement. A friend of mine
that works for the OSE said he’d never heard of a developer having an agreement like
that with a community. It gone done in eventually by people who didn’t agree. But I just
wanted to say that we are ali concemed with the water. There’s no question. But'we
couldn’t have — we can’t be working with a better person (o be dealing with it. And I also
have to say thank you for the trails, for the open space. It's fantastic. I know a lot of
friends of mine spend a lot of time there and so do I, Thank you.

. COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Great. Thank you very much, Now,
before I go to the developer, is there anyone else from the community or anybody else in
the public who would like to speak for or against. Okay. The public hearing is not closed
but what we have had is a question about one of the conditions about changing the name
of the project. Could somebody address that?

[Duly swomn, Ted Harrison testified as follows:]

TED HARRISON: Ted Harrison, and my address is 117 North Guadalupe
Street, Santa Fe. Madam Chair, members of the Commission, ] am the founder and
president of Commonweal Conservancy, which is the developer, a word that I still kind
of choke on a bit. In lerms of the name change, we did change the name of the
community which I know was a concern, Commissioner Anaya, of your brother, who was
very worried that there would be confusion by using the name as we had in our master
plan approval of the Village at the Galisteo Basin Preserve. So the name was changed to
Trenza, which means braid, which is an attempt to speak 1o the many threads of ambition
and purpose thal are a part of this project. It actually wasn’t a condition to change the
name of the entire landscape, which we were hoping was celebrating and recognizing the
watershed that we're a part of end to attach the very substantial and purposeful label
preserve speaks to the many thousands and thousands of acres that are part of the open
space that is a driving force of this project.
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So Galistea Basin Preserve is considered the name and it is signed this way for
the larger property, the 13,000 acres, but the village is now known as Trenza. And I think
it’s part of our application.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Yes. Thank you very much. The public
hearing part of this is now clased and we’re now to the Commission for questions or
comments.

CHAIR VIGIL: Questions or comments? Commissioner Anaya,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, [ want to make sure I
completely understand the perspectives. So Muriel, if I could ask you to come back up
first. You said you have some concerns about water but you're not necessarily opposed to
the project? Can you clarify what that means for me?

MS. FARIELLO: Well, I’'m not in favor of the entire project, because
that’s 2,000 houses or whatever. [ don’t know how many houses in the end to Phase III.
But I'm in favor of their extension on the basis of the original condition. They waved that
paper saying that the County is ready, willing and able to provide water to Commonweal
through the Buckman project.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: We're going to get to that. But you're in
support of (he master plan?

MS. FARIELLO: I would be in support of it. I'm told here tonight that it
will come under the Sustainable Growth Development Plan rules and regulations and
that’s fine with me.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: 1 got you. Thanks, Muriel. And then Lucy, if
you could come forward. 1 think [ understood you to raise some concerns about water but
it sounds like you were supportive of the project overall, or did I miss that?

MS. LIPFARD: Yes, I am supportive of the project averall, by all means.
And L konow waler is always going to be a problem and 1 hope this gets solved to all our
benefits,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay, And then Rod Hall, Mr. Hall, you
commented that you have vast concerns probably about the project overall at any level. Is
that appropriate? And also I guess another question for you is did the mutual domestic
board take any action associated with this project previously or currently? Or are you
speaking as an individual?

MR. HALL: The only action the water association took was to file a
protest concerning the water transfer from downstream to upstream.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: On the Phase I is my understanding?

MR. HALL: Yes, well, their request was for a transfer of 28.5 acre-feet of
water, and that's what we filed the protest with the State Engincer.

CCOMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. And thanks, Mr. Hall. Appreciate
that. So the applicant and staff, it’s my understanding that there was no commitment of
the County or condition on the watcr with Phase I, that they had adequate water. Am [
wrong or could you clarify that for me? Thanks, Rod. ! appreciate it

MS. LUCEROQ: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, Phase [ was
approved on the basis that the applicant would utilize a couple of onsite wells and
establish their own community water system. There was a condition though that would
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require them to connect to the County system prior to preliminary plat approval of Phases
11 through VI. So Phase 1 was approved based on them utilizing a couple of onsite wells
as their own community water system.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. So is cverybody clear with that? [
think what Mr. Hall brought up is they’re contesting the transfer of rights for that
particular well but that Phase I was never required as & condition to be part of the County
system. Is that right?

MS. LUCERO: That was cormrect. Yes.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: And how many acre-feet are we talking
about for the first phase?

SHELLEY COBAU (Building & Development Services): Madam Chair,
Commissioner' Anaya, 27.9 acre-feet. Rod, if 1 remember correctly, the Village of
Galisteo pets 26 feet, or do you get more now? Twenty-six acre-feet foc the traditional
community system, or 42 %. Okay. What are we utilizing right now in Galisteo, of that
allocation that we have? We're not using all 42 Y%, Thirty?

MR. HALL: It's between 20 and 30.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: And I could restate it. There's 42 usable
acre-feet within the Galisteo — not Ranchitos, right? We're just talking the traditional
community, And we utilize somewhere in the range between 20 and 30 acre-feet
annuaily,; but they’re still allocated Look-ups; they're not connected. Right? As of yet.

So understanding that this was a previous approval that was made by a prior
Commission I cari say that there is a coneern associated with the aquifer at any time. It
doesn't mean that I'm opposed to any project in the coramunity but that we also —we
need Lo be cognizant of what we have as allocated water, especially in a long-standing
traditional community and what we’re using and what we still have available yet to use.
Because weedon't know how long we're going to have it if at all; So I think that's a valid o
point. Was there one other item? Is everybody on the same page still? We're talking
about extension of & master plan. We're talking about water that's allocated to a
community system only in Phase 1 and subsequent phases would then have to be
connected to a County system.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Any further questions? Has the public hearing been
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closed?

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Yes.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. What’s the pleasure of the Commission?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair.

CHAIR. VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya:

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: As I understand it, aside from (he legal issue
associated with what you're doing with the State Engineer which is out of the auspices of
the County, are there any other considerations that the applicant would have or any other
proposed amendments that could bring some of the separation closer together maybe with
some of the concerns that are raised today? Do you have any thoughts? We essentially
heard - the majority of what the feedback 1 heard was there supporiive of the project
generally. There’s still the concern associated with water that Mr. Hall has articulated and
I think all of them articulated but generally there seems to be acceptance of the project.
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In the spirit of coordination or additional cohesiveness between the two entities is
there anything you would suggest, or thoughts, Mr. Harrison, that you might have?

MR. HOEFT: Commissioner, one thing that we could monitor is just
simply the development of the County water line into this area and again, we don't want
to make any commitments because we don’t know the timing, but if we're outnowa
couple of years in terms of our development and when we're going to be submitting for
final plat and development plan we may be able to catch up to that line at some point.
And so that's one action that we need to kind of be monitoring. And I know that the
County Public Works Department is beginning to proceed wilh the design and
development of that line. And so that's something that could possibly come together. And
[ think thatl we can address that by the (ime we get to final development plan and plat,
when we actuafly come back in front of this board a couple of years from now, we could
kind of see where the development of that line is at.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. I appreciate that. I'm going to ask if |
could, Madam Chair, a question, and I'd like to hear from some of the residents in
Galisteo. Not just this development but the other development that was approved, the
Saddleback Ranch development that was approved by the County. [ participated in the
discussions as an observer, [ wasn't sitting in this chair that I’m sitting in now, And |
understand the frustration and heard the jssues associated with Saddleback and even some
of the concemns articulated with this going back, as far as frustrations.

My question — because I've been petting some different feedback now, and [ want
to be explicit and clear and 1 want to hear it from some of the folks that are in this room.
In the deliberations on these subdivisions I heard again and again and again that if there
was a connection to County water, and if there was a way for projects like that to offset
the groundwater that we're pulling out of the aquifer through another source, I heard in

‘ those meetings and I"d be happy to go and pull those meetings and pull the exact minttes
and when things like that were articulated. [ heard that that would be a good thing.

And I'm hearing now from staff that there was a condition and the Village
residents are bringing up now that if they hook up to the County water system that that’s
a good thing. Well, in recent weeks and from some of you in the audience today, tonight,
I haven’t received that feedback, I’ve received feedback that’s saying what are you doing
extending the County water line? I've received that feedback. Why'd you do that? Which
goes completely contrary to the feedback that was heard at the Board of County
Commissioners and some of the deliberations for the project. So if you don’t fecl
comfortable doing it today and Roger and Anna, maybe this is something you guys can
have discussions about as a community later and then bring them back, I'm hearing the
opposite now.

And with all due respect, I think we need to vet that discussion and we need to
have that discussion, because before it was bringing the County water in and the County
is extending a line to the village of Cafioncito because they're in dire need of that line,
and I've expressed it in writing and verbally that I believe — 1 wasn’t on the Comumission
when they did it and it was a bond issue that did it, but I'm supportive that that village of
Cafioncito is going to have access to viable water and 2 water source. And [ believe |
articulated that to several of you in this room.
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But now I'm hearing - I'm getting mixed messages. I'm hearing that no, waita
minute. We don’t really want the water line. So 1 think we're going to have a water
summit and we're going to have discussions and they're going to get complex but that
strikes to the core of some of what I’m hearing tonight and I think those are tough things
1'd like to work with you and leam more about because I'm getting mixed messages. And
so as this development goes, like I said, I can't get involved in the State Engineer’s issucs
or the item that you brought up, Mr. Hall, that you've raised concern gbout. You'reina
legal process of mediation 1o resolve that but at the same time [ think we need to be
careful how we utilize our water and where we utilize it, but I also think we can't hold
everyone hostage associatéd with prior approvals or be inconsistent with our decisions
and allow one area to have an extension of master plan and then turn around five minutes
later and disallow one. sl

So I think it’s complex; it’s not simple. But I'm publicly letting you know some
of the feedback that I'm getting and asking you as a community to help me better
understand where is the community, relative (o a County water system and moving closer
and closer into the outlying areas of the county, And where does the County and those
communities fit associated with their acceptance or approval. Because on the one hand 1
hear that thére was a commitment by the County lo put water there, but then 1 get an
cmail that says, hey, we don’t want the County system at all. So I want to know. [ wasn’t
2 part of all those determinations, but I want to know and have ail the information so that
I can work through it and understand it as best I can before I render any decision.

CHAIR VIGIL: I think the benefit of this community, Comumjssioner
Anaya, | mean this particular praject is we’re here tonight only for an extension request.
And we can add conditions of approval and what you've requested, the input you're,
looking for between the time that we actually approved this project would probably be at
a monitoring state of the utilities system and the response from the community that you'll
be able to have more information, but for tonight we’re just approving an extension and 1
think it would be great maybe your constituency services could coordinate some
information gathering to get from the community and we’ll be better informed if in fact
enother condition of approval has to be there we'll still have the opportunity. So with
that, I think we’re ready to move on this. What is the pleasure of the Commission on this
particular ~ Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I am going to move approval of BCC
Case MIS 06-5032, Trenza Time Extension, and it is for the period of 36 months
extension with no changes of conditions. It’s also understood they have to come forward
for final plat approval.

CHAIR VIGIL: T have a motion.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: I will second that.

CHAIR VIGIL: Do you have a question or comment?

CCOMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, I would ask that for what [
would call 2 friendly amendment to that. I don't know what other conversations have
been held on an ongoing basis with the community but as the applicant, if the extension is
granted and as the applicant continues to go forward towards preliminary and final, which
gets into the specifics of all the aspects in the development, if they would commit to
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meeting with the Village on a regular basis through that process to keep them abreast of
what's going on and to seek some input. Would you be acceptable to doing that?

MR. HOEFT: Yes, Commissioner.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Madam Chair, I just want to
make a couple of comments, First of all I want to note that this development bas already
agreed that they will comply with the new code if it comes into existence before the
development begins and [ think that that answers a lot of concerns. And also [ want to
note they alsa have agreed that even if - it sounds like even on Phasc [ at the time that
they're going for final plal approval they will consider if it looks feasible to hook into
County waler that they would even consider at least look at that as a possibility at that
time. And I would certainly strongly urge them to do that at that time, if it looks like it’s
feasible. In other words if we have a pipeline nearby and in time for their development
and 50 on. And alsa, T would like to alse note that that is just Phase I and this is just
preliminary plat approval. There still has to be final plal approval.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, on the previous point,

CHAIR VIGIL: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, Commissioner Holian, so
you're talking about Phase 11 and subsequent phases, it's a condition that they absolutely
would have to connect to the County system, right? So, Commissioner Holian, are you
referring to Phase IT and IIE and potentially even including Phase I in that hook-up?

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Well, Scott Hoeft indicated that if at the
time they were starting in on Phase I, even at that time if we had a County water supply
line near they would consider hooking into County water even at that time. That’s my
understanding.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA.: Is that your understanding, Scott? =

MR. HOEFT: Just to clarify here. We're out several years in terms of
being able to come back for final development plan. As we're coming back we'll check
with Public Works Department and Pego to see where they're at with the development of
that line. Right now our condition states that we're permitted to do onsite wells in the 28
acre-fect that was referenced early in the OSE approval. At the time, however, when we
get back again we will check and sce the status and see where the water line is at. Yes,
Commissioner.

CCOMMISSIONER ANAY A: Madam Chair, Commissioner Stefanics,
would you accept that as a friendly smendment?

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Madam Chair, 1 have no objection to the
amendment. [ believe though that that has been the tenor of this particular developer ali
along. Does the developer have any problems with it? I don’t have any problems with it
but that's what theyve been doing all along, In fact they probably can document many,
many meetings, the community as well as the developer.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay, we have a motion with an amendment that the
developer will stay in communication with the community to gain further insights as we
create the best outcome for resource sharing of water, which is the goal here. And there is
a second.

ZTOEA/C0/60 QEHTIODHY 2HHETD 248



Printer Friendly View " Pagg

Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Mesting of December 13, 2011
Page 96

The motion passed by unanimous [4-0] voice vote.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, gentlemen, for being here. Thank you all for
testifying.

XV. A.' 5. CDRC Case # V 11-5270 Cuatro Villas Mutua) Domestic
Water Users Associations. Cuatre Villas Mutual Domestic
Water Users Assaciation, Applicant, Kari Edenfield (Souder,
Mitler 2nd Associates), Agent, Request a Variance, of Article
10l Section 4.4.4.C Development and Design Standards, to
Allow a Proposed Water Storage Tank to Exceed the
Maximum Permitted Height of Thirly-Six Feet. The Projcet is
Lecated at 51 Placita Road, within Section 4, Township 20
North, Range 9 East (Commissian District 1) Jose E.
Larrafaga; Case Manaper

MR LARRANAGA: Thank you, Madam Chair. On October 20, 2011, the
County Development Reviciv Committee met and acted on this case, the decision of the
CDRC was to recommend approval of CDRC CASE # V 11-5270, Cuatro Villas Mutual
Domestic Water Users Association:

The Cuatro Villas Mutual Domestic Water Users Association is a nonprofit
community organization cstablished under the New Mexico Sanitary Projects Act. The
mission of Cuatro Villas MDWUA is to provide safe, reliable drinking water to the
communities of La Puebla, Sombrillo, Cuarteles and E! Valle de Arroyo Seco.

On May 24,2011, the Board of County Commissioners approved a request for a
Grant of Right of Way, to the Cuatro Villas Mutual Domestic Water Users Association,
for the purpose of installing two 500,000-gallon concrete waler storage tanks and
distribution infrastructure on the site known as La Pucbla Pack located at 51 Placita Road.

An Administrative review of the site for placement of a five hundred thousand
(500,000) gallon concrete watce storage tank and distribution infrastructure is currently
being processed by Building and Development Services. The development will
encompass approximately 0.74 acres within the site, The tank will have an exposcd
height of 47 feet with eight feet compromising the dome roof. The north side of the tank
will be partially buried and have an exposed height of 31 feet . Approval of this
development is pending resolution of the proposed height of the tank and technical
review by the Utility Department.

The Applicant requests a variance of Article 11, Section 4.4.4.c, Development and
Design Standards of the Land Development Code, to allow a 500,000-gallon concrete
water storage tank to exceed the maximum permitted height of 36 feet. The Applicant
states: “The proposed elevation of the tank is needed to provide the optimal elevations for
providing the required pressure for the water system. The site was selected for its
centralized location within the Cuatro Villas service area and site elevations to provide
the gravity flow needed for the systern”.
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XIV. A, 6. CDRC Case # S 16-5031 the Villapgg at Galisten Rasin Preserve g =)
Preliminary PlagDevelopment Plan. Commonweal Conscrvancy o;‘
Inc., Applicant, Ted Harrison, Agent Request Preliminary Plat N
#nd Development Plan Approvul for Phasc 1 of the Village at 5:},?,
Galisteo Basin Prescrve Which Will Consist of 131 Single-Family NN
Residential Lots, 3 Multi-Family Residential Lots for 2 Total of N
149 Residential Units, and S Non-Residentinl Lots Within a 60- S N
Acre Development Envelape within an Overall 10,000+Acre Arca. g
The Request Also Includes the Following Variances of the County -
Land Development Code: 1) to Allvw Driveway Locations 1o Be e

Closer than 100 Fect From Intersections; 2) to Aflow Slopes of Up
to 5% within 50 Feet of un Intersection Rather Than Required 3%
or Less Within 100 Feet of an Intersection; 3) to Allow Driving
Lages for Minor Artcrial Roads and Local Sub-Collector Roads to
Be Reduced to A Width of Less Than 12 Feet; 4) to Reduce the
Required R-O-W Width From 50 Feet to 32 Feet for Loéal Sub-
Collector Roads und 25 Feet for Local Lane Roadways; 5) to
Allow a Cul-de-Sac Leagth of 900 Feet; 6) to Allow Commercial
and Residentinl Building Heights of Up tn 30 Feet in Cectain Arcas
(Commission District 3} Vicki Lucero, Case Manager

MS. LUCERO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On September 8, 2009, the BCC tabled
this casc and directed the upplicant to submit a new market analysts, to provide morc data
regarding water availability for the entire development, and to work with the communities of
Galisteo, Eldorado, Lamy, Cafioncito, and the Eldorado Aren Water.and Sanitation District. The
applicant has submitted documentation ragarding the meetings they have held with these
communities and enfities. Howcver, as of the time this information was submitted they had not
met with the community of Cafioncito. And 1 helieve the applicant had a meeting scheduied Tast
week which got cancelled due to the weather but they have spoken (o at leas! one person within
that commyunity and they can expand on that futher during their presentation.

The npplicant did submit a revised market analysis. Stafl's review comments on the
market analysis ar: attuched in Exhibit I). The applicant submitted a letter to the County
Utilities requesting water service for phases 2 through 5 of the proposed development in order
to address the long-term water availability issues as dirccted by the BCC ot the September
meeting. The Utilities Department has issued a2 rendy-witling-and-able letier 1o provide water 1o
the development subject to several condit.ons. And that Jetter is refirenced in Exhibit L.

Staff believes that a change in waler supply from a private system to the County Utility
would require a master plan amendmient and this should be done prior to the Board taking
action on the preliminary plat for phases 2 through 5. StafF alsa believes this change could have

an impact on the design of the water systam thal should be taken into account. This may
required revised plans to be submitted for reviely
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On .Iunc 18, 2009 the CDRC met and acted on this case. The decision of the CDRC was
1o n:cormncnd nppmv&l of thls request. The Tequest that was presented to the CDRC included a
variance to allaw cu! de- mcs grcatcrthnn 500 feet in Jength, Article V, Section 8.2.1.d of the
Land Devefopmcnt Codc stzm:s llmt_cu}—da-sacs shall not be longer than 500 feet. However, in
low dcmuy res:dentml a.reas the lcngths of cul-de-sacs may be adjusted by the CDRC with the
changes consnslcnt wuh pubhc ml‘ct) factors. The CDRC approved the cul-de-sac lengths, Aficr
several meebngs'wnh the & phcanls rcgardmg the specific issuc staff has dctr:nnmed thata
variance for the Icnélh_o([ cu]rde—sac is nof needed.

The Lan U‘ "Adfﬁ‘mnsmlm hus prepared 2 staiement that T would Jike to read into the
record, “The V:llngc at Gahstno Pl:csme has presented numerous challenges for the Land Use
Dcvclopmcnt Rc\ |cw sfaf'f and thi:} dcpmmcnt smf[ mr.mben' The success of the projcct
depends on 2 nungbcr f%m pla.nmng, s And dcvélopmcm techniques thal are not yel in ful] play
in Santa Fe Counly T_'he ldms aof clust;:n:d, mixed-use developmeut patiems, community-based
affordable housmg,' n'ew road conf guMOns_? green busldmg,, walershed management and
restoration, ngncu_lfm'cv i pen space protection, altcmatlvc encrgy development and localized
cconomic devcfﬁixfr’:ré’ﬁl 1ﬁlunnvcs arc basic g groyth Tunagement principles that were originally
considered ‘and ou!lmpﬁl _m the Sdnln te : County 1999 Growth Management Plun.

'Manxof thcsb w:r: 1mplcmenle& in the creation of the Community College District
and the subscquen{ ndopuon of Ordmanoc ¢ No. 2000-12, m ordinance providing for land use
and zumng rcgulauons for I.hal distnct. AI this moment, hnwevcr thoge adopled principles
apply only to the (.ommumty Coﬂegc Dislrict and not to the County in general, The Village al
Galisteo Basin Preserve has 1o be reviewed under the existing rules and regulations that apply
specifically 1o it and not to the Commurity College District. In addition, this has created a more
difficult situafion for Land Use staff as they fully understand that as part of the development of
u new sustainablc land use plan and code many of our older and inefleciive growth management
strategics and lechmqucs arc being reconsidered and new tules and regulations are being
proposcd Consequently, a number of issucs presenied by the Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve
are variances to our existing codes and must be presented as such, as that is what they ore,
variances to existing rules and regulations.

“In the majority of the land use cascs that we Teview in our department we do not
support viriances but present them to the governing body for final consideration und
determination. Tn this cuse we present the detailed issues of the variances but suggest that in
relation e or in comparison with the Cammunity College District onlinance, und in
consideration of pruposed new growth management lechmqm and regulations most of these
variances might well be in cornpllancc with futire rules and regulations. Furthermore, since the
last Board of County Commission meetng County Land Use, Public Works and Fire stafT have
met with the applicant’s stafT and gone over cach variance in more detail to determine in
compnnsun with the CCD regulations and currently proposed ncw ideas if any of their proposed
veriances present an immediate threa 10 health and safety concerns thar we might have. ,

“At this point in the de on of this projec! and in the consideration of our new ;
sustainable Jand development plan arld gode it is the opinion of the Land Use Administrator that
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these project variances do not pose any threats to health, safety and welfare concems, and most @3
of them may in fact not be variances under the proposed pes plan and code. We hope that you o’;
will review these varianees in that same contex..” ‘\f
St recommendation: Article [[, Section 3 states that the Development Review €32
Committce may recommend to the Board and the Board may vary, modify, or waive the \f:
requirement of the Code, and upon adeqeate proof that compliance with Code provisions ar Ll
issue will result in on arbitrary and unreasonable iaking of property, or exact hardship, and ey
proof that a variance from the Code will not result in conditions injurious to health or safety. ©wn
The upplicant is requesting a variance of allowable building height and several variances having °
10 da with road construction design standards. They are requesting 1o reduce right-of-way o

widths, reduce driving surface width, inorease madways at the approach (o intersections, and
reduce spacing between intersections.

The County Land Development Code siates, *The arrangement, character, extent, width,
grade and location of all roads shall be considered in relation to convenience and safety and ta
the proposed use of land 1o be served by such roads.”

Sclf-sustaining, clustered mixed-use developments such as the Village al Galisteo Busin
Preserve are not categorized differently ar regulated differently than typical residential,
cammereial ar mixed-use developments under the County Land Development Code. The only
regulations that apply specifically to this type of development are found in the Community
College District Ordinance. The applicant has somewhat designed this projeet based on the
purpose, principles end guidelines of the Community College District Ordinance, Although
stalT recogmizes that the design standards and repulations of the CCDO) are more appropriate
standards for this development 1o follow, staff cannot recommend approval of the variances
requested because this development duey not fall within the jurisdietion of the Community
College and must comply with the regulations and standards st forth in the County Land
Development Code. ¢

The decision of the CRRC was te recommend approval of this request. I the BCC s
decision is to approve this request staff recommends the following conditions be impascd. Mr.
Chair, may I entet those into the record?

[The conditions are as follows:]
All redlines must be nddressed.
Compliance with applicable review comments from the following:
Sinte Enginecr
State Environment Depi
Soil & Water Conscrvation
State Depariment of Transportation
County Hydrologist"¥ater Resources Department
Development Review Director
County Fire Marshal (Site & Building Plans)
County Public Works
State Ilist+ﬂc Preservation Division

I
A

~EFmEme RS TR

o2,



Printer Friendly View

Sants Fe Comty
Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of February 9, 2080
Page 83
i County Technical Raview
k. Open Space, Parks & Trails Division
1 Public School District
m.  County Housing Division
n. County Planning Division

3 Development within the US 84/2835 Highway Corridor shall comply with the district
standards of the US 84/285 South Highway Comridor Ordinance (Ordinance No.
2005-08)

4, Al archeological easements shall be shown en the plat. The State Historic
Preservation Office shall approve all proposed mitigation measures prior to final
plat recordation,

5. Base flood clevations for the Arroyo de Los Anpeles and its tributaries shall be
esinblished prior to final plat approval.

6. All redline comuments must be addressed.

7. Road names and addresses must be approved by Rum) Addressing prior to final plat
recordation’

8. Final homeowners docurnents and disclosure statement are subject to approval by
stafF prior Io final plat.

9. Waler restrictive covenants shall be recurded with fhe final plat.

10. Al utilities must be underpronmd. .

1. Alllots arc subject to the Santa Fe County Fire ond Rescue Impact fees. This must
be clesrly noted on the final plat.

12, The epplicant must submit an engineer’s cost estimate and final guarantec for all
required improvements {i.e., rwad construction, streel and truffic signs, fire
protection, elc.) prior to final plat recordation. A schedule of compliance projecting
time period for complelion of improvements must be included, Upon completion, ©
the applicant must submit a certification by a registered professional engineer that
improvements have been completed according to the approved development plan,

13. The following note must be put on the plat: Permits for building construction wifl
not be issued until required improvements for roads, dralnage and fire pratection
have been completed as requlred by staff,

14. Anaccess permit will be required from NMDOT prior to final plat approval.

15.  Anapproved discharge from the Environment Department shal] he submitted prior
1o recording the plat,

16.  Compliance with conditions ¢ the master plan approval.

17. A water quality and waler system maintenance plan shall be submitted prior to final
plat approval.

18.  This development will be subject to the Santa Fe County Sustainahle Land
Development Plan and Sustainable Lund Development Code,

19,

The top of all swales must be at 1cast ten fect off the pavemnent to provide a cler
zone. Street trees cannot be placed in the clear zone,

OTOT/FE/00 QEITHEODEY HMYITD 248
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20.  The proposed sireets throughout the development must comply with the exact road @ m
standards of the Communily College District Ordinance as specifically described in o P
Exhibit M. This includes placement of curb and gotter and increasing right-of-way %'\3' o
widths, (W
21. Master plan must be amended to reflect the change of water service from an onsite & :3
communily water system to service by the Coumty Waler Systern prior to g &
preliminary plant applicntion of Phases I-VI1. I; :,
22, Development must comply with Section 5.9 (Culverts, open channels and o
stormdrain systems) of the County Floodpluain Ordinance {Ordinance 2008-10), =
23, The applicant must provide road cross-section every 50 feet to show cut and fill
slopes. The scconds must include street names and station numbers. These sections
must be provided with the submittal of the final plat/development plan for this
project in order lo facilitute a detailed review.
CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Questions for staif. Commissioner Anaya.
COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Vieki, did they change the
nane?

MS. LUCERO: Mr, Chair, Commissioner Anaya, at this point they have not
suggested a name change,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay, I'm going to go thead and move 1o table.
No, P'm just kidding,

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: I almost gave you a second there. Okay. The
applicant, if he'd please come forward apd be sworn in.

[Duly sworn, Scott Hocfi testified as follows:]

SCOTT HOEFT: Scoit Toeft, Santa Fe Planning Group, 109 St. Francis, Santa
I'e, New Mexieo, 87504, Afler the last meeting that we had in September Ted asked me 10
come ahord (o help out with some of the outstanding issues. He's putled in a lot of different
ways. We had some issues that we reatly needed 1o sit down with stafl und solve, mostly the
variance issues and so he asked me to come aboard 1o sec if we can sort aut these issues. By the
reading of the staff report that you just heard you can tell that we've come a long way in the last
four months.

Whiat we'd like to do though is rtut go throngh a belabored presentation. I'm going to
start off where we lefl off a the last heasing. I'm puing to address the five points that were kind
of hanging that I looked at in the minute; of the previous hearing and from there — 111 be about
five minutes in length, and from there T" Turn it over 1o the public to make statements if | ean
have a chance though at the end to speak at the end of the project to canclude. That would be
helpful.

So where we lell off lust were the varjances, and we had five 1o deal with, actually four
now, because the issuc with the cul-de-sac and the length of it was no longer applicable. And
that was an issue related 1o density. But what 1 don’t want 1o do is po through cach of the
variances in tumn. What [ want (o state though is that what we concludad when we met with
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staff, with Shc]lc), with Jack, with Publ.c Works, is thal we weren't that far off. What was Q :.,::
pretly apparent is that what we were asking for was elmost within the confines of the CCD ol
District 2nd in fact thene were only a few instances here and there that were beyond the CCD Ef =
District. t3 ™
And 50 when we began to study that it became apparcat that what we were asking for £
really wasn't that abnormal and that in fact it was very progressive, and in fact, even lhmhng 2>
ahead to the new code, the SLDP, we were very consisient with ultimately what was goingtobe & ;
planned. And so | think once we kind of got that all on the teble and we really went through °o
cach of the instances and literally, the staff of Commonweal broupht out drawings and we =

showed where each of these instances were going 10 be, that it beeame, it seemed a lot fess
anerous for stufT to review and overall I think we've come & long way. And I know they can't
technically recommend support of variances pursuant (o the Code, they can say, as Jack stated
in his paragraph, that he feels they don’t posc a significant threat to the health, safety and
welfare.

Angd so ] think that we've come a lung way with those varianee issues and again, with
stafT conditions, [ feel we support where we're at right now. What [ want to do, however, is at
the end of my presentation come back and modify two of the conditions. We mel with Shelley
and with Vicki yesterday and 1 think we've come a long way with actually sorting out two
more. So the variance issues I think we've come along with.

The sccond issue thal °d like 1o point out was | saw where we left ofT last in September
was in neighborhood mectings, and there was a concern thal we haven’t met with Eldorado,
Tamy, and Galisteo. And what Ted did immediatcly in October, as | mentioned, he pulled in a
lot of diffcrent ways is had neighborhood meelings. And he did meet with these groups
pursiant Lo (he request of this Board to gather additional feedback. And for the most part, they
were relatively positive meelings. The one exception was Cafioncito. We tried. Ted had n
snecling [ think up until Jast weck and it was snowed out: We did have a chance to talk with Ms,
Guurule, who is the association representative in that erca, and at a glance she dida’t quite see
why we were mecting with her beeause :1's quile a distance from the project itself. It's about 12
miles away, but she’d be more than willing to sit down with us and discuss the project. Butata
glance she was supportive of the project

The next issue was market study. You asked us (o updute the markel study that was
completed in 05 and 06. In other words, we did, We submitted thase two updated reports and
you have a review leiter from Santa Fe County staft member Duncan Sill; and overall, those are
relatively positive. A couple of things to point out with the market stody, and T don’t want 1o get
into the nuts and bolts unless you have specific questions, is just generally the theme of what
we're talking about here with this projeat. This project has a competitive advantage, and you
read thal within those reports, and that competitive advantage is that you have a project on
10,000 acres that’s utilizing 300 acres. Okay. 10,000 acres utilizing 300 acres. That's preity
impressive. And why those people arc going to buy in that community is for that 10,000 acres,

And so you have u product that has a mulﬁpllc type of housing units. You have tighter
density of a traditional community, which agzin, g«.+:s with the varance request thal we're
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asking for, and it’s going o be a product that we fee] is 2oing lo be in demand. And so that is
the competitive advantage that | believe comes out jn those market studies.

The next issue 1I'd like fo tlk ahout is water, We feel that we've satisfied the
qualifications and the requirements of the prel iminary developrent plan submittal and plat and
Steve Ross can verifiy that and we went farther in thal we received a letter from Marvin
Marlinez, we worked with the County Utitity Department to et a ready-willing-and-able to
serve letter for the balance of the project al your request. So we accomplished that. And that
letter is in your packet as well und it largely states it would be served by the County wility for
the balance of the project beyond Phase 1.

And the last thing Id like to talk about in terms of the points that you brought up at the
last hearing was the name of the project. Commissioner Anaya, we heard the concem regarding
(he name and as stewards of the community, Commonweal did not want to get in the position of
fecling like they were piraling the historieal nature of that area, and so we've changed the name,
The name of the project is Trenua. A single word, it means braid, and it gets at the community
and the weave that is going to be illusirated within the design intent. It’s going 1o have the
multiple product types, the multiplc income levels, the tighter densily, the vast amounts of open
space. IU's poing io be a braid witlin the community. 8o the new pame of the project is Trenza.
The Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve no longer exists.

o the last thing 'd like to talk about in my brief presentation is this comment on the
mecting we had with Robert Freilich. So when Ted asked me 1 come aboard to help him shore
up some of these issucs T said, look, the first thi ng we have to do i sit down with Robent
Freilich because we have to understand the intent of the project and what we're trying lo
accomplish. Is this consistent with ultimatcly where the County wants to £o? And so we sel up
a meeting with Robert, with Roman Abexta, with Steve Ross, back in October to present the
project 4o him, which he's never seen before, and to say this is what we're trying to accomplish.
Wha! do you see? And is this a problem for the County? And he was very supportive of the

project.

The variances, he was supportive of most of the variances as well. He thought those
were very consistent with ultimately whete the Code is going to be. He liked the iden ol the
traditional community, the nco-traditiona’ planning, the new urban principles and the tight
density, the mulliple product types, the multiple income fevels, all woven into this tight
community, while the balance of the land, 10,000 acres left a5 open space for the benefit of the
community and for the public. He liked that ides.,

We also talked about the primary 1nd sccondary prowth arens. We've all seen the maps
now in the new plan that shows primary, secondary growth areas and we asked the point
specifically, we asked — this area is in a secondary growth arca. It’s not in a primary gowth
area. How does that affect you? And he said, that’s fine. The intent of the map is not 1o say
everything needs to occur first within the primary growth area and then only then can the
secondary growth area come into play. In :"act[, the secondary growth area, this is a medel
project, can serve as #n example of whst athers should follow within the community. Tight
density, vast amounts of open space - whet rr{nn: <an the County ask for?
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So in sum, 1 can’t speak for Mr. Freilich; he's not here this evening. But overall, in g .?;

those meetings that we had, initially, right afier the hearing that we had in Seplember, Mr. o
Freilich was very supportive of the project. So with that, that’s my presentation. T'll stand for Q a
questions and I'll open it up to the public. Thank you, f;': K
CITAIRMAN MONTOY A: Okzy, questions for the applicant? Commissioner ?j E

Anaya. &
COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Scott, T was just checking to scc if you were B
awake earlier. =S
MR. HOEFT: You got me. o

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Did you see him jump?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Tell me about the cemetery.

MR. HOEET: The cemctery is something Lhat we just talked about today to try

10 - I needed to get n handle on it as well. And what it is is that what we're going to be doing is
not going through the traditional processes of embalming people. Tt will he natural Process, to
where people will be put into the ground in & natural way without the normat chemicals that dre
used in the embalming process, The other option on that will be that be thut people who arc in
fact cremated, rather than using the dollars that they would normally spend on funeral
arrangements or on the process would be taking thesc dollars, donaling it to Commonwes), so
in tum they would be buying additional land for the prescrve.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So who can be buried there?

MR. HOEFT: Anyone.

COMMISSIONLER ANAYA: And tell me abowt the natural. What do you
mean? You're not going to need a cuskel?

MR. HOEFT: Thet T don't know. If you would indulge me, could I just talk 1o
my colleague really briefly?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes, I wanl Lo know the details.

MR. HOEFT: You know muybe it’s time. Let me just Jel Ted unswer this
question. He has i really pood handle on it.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Another thing T want o talk ebout is who can be
buried there and how much is it going to cost to be buried there, We've got o lot of indigent
peoplc that die and can’t pay for places or plots, and I want to know if they can be able to be
buried there without being charged.

MR. HOEFT: Ted will have to answer that question. Let me get him up here
right now and he can feld the question, Commissioner, if that's okay with your

[Duly swom, Ted Harrison festified as follows!)

TED HARRISON: Ted Harrison, 2112 Paseo de] Montc, Santa Fe, New
Mexico. Mr. Chair, Commissioner, aclunlly, there’s an individual in the audience that is
working with us very specifically on the green burial program, so he can give you - | hesitate
fo say the gory delails. But he can give you quite a stary as to the work that he's pursuing to
bring forward nationally and to have our project be an cxample of haw we ean go back w a
burial process that doesn't have all the layering and expense that the funcral indusiry has
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come to apply to the death process. foe

We were excited about pursuing a project, pursuing a community development that it
was truly cradle to grave. And to do the grave part of it mos! responsibly we've looked to 120
experts around the country as to what is the most benign way to take a body into the ground, %)
with the lowest carbon footprint. And the most gentle, lowest-carbon footprint way to do that N
is to tnke o body quickly after the persan has died, refrigerate them wrap them ina shroud and =ty

inter them inte the ground, And then another element of the green burizal is you don't end up E‘:
with headstones in the Kentucky bluegrass, that’s also a part of a fot of the way we've been LA
doing cemeteries in the last 50 years. e

So to keep the land and the burial site native grasses or shrubs. And folks whe choose o

10 be buried this way end up essentially with a GPS coordinate us to where their leved one
has been buried. There's also a plan for a ritual site so that in the process of acknowledging
that person’s life and their passing there’s o space within this five-acre cemetery. s nota
large piece of the project. That they would have a place at the cemelery to be able to offer last
remarks and #n acknowledgement.

There is the opportunity for (oiks o be interred afler they were cremated, although the
lowest carbon footprint approach is to take the whole body iniu the earth. How many people
could be accommodated? ! think the plan right now is 8 5 %-acre eemetery. 1t's shocking. It's
not my experience as to what the densily of bodies could be in a cemetery of 5 % acres, but |
think Joe Sthee who is the head of the 1S Green Burial Council might describe the densily as
being 1,500 1o 2,000 people. So when we talk sbout it having be & cemetery that’s open to the
larger public it would be quickly flled up, I think. So if we want to expand it, if that's an
opporiunity ut a luler point, if this is a well received concept then we're cerfainly open to that,
We do have quite a bit of lund.

We also hove the oppontunity to pursue scatlering, so people who have pone through
the pracess of bring cremated and don’t necessarily want to be interred can be scattered
within the larger open space and a 1ol af people - we get calls and they've mentioned this in
an carlier presentation, we get calls evary week for folks. 1 wish we had this many folks
imcrested in the Jots. But we have folks every week calling us about the opportunity to be
scutiered or buried in this landscape. .

So there may be ways ta saccommodate peaple in all variely of practices. Whole body
burial, a burial of an urn that has cremirted remains or a scattering. In terms of cost, I think a
traditionu! burial can run $12,000 to $20,000. And there's a variety of price points. Il isn't
our business but Joc Schee could probubly speak to it more specifically, but the idea is to
make this available to folks for a couple hundred dollars, So if you're just coming in ona
scattering or an interment of ashes it’s a very modest cost. The opportunity to use the green
burial as a fundraising strategy is something that also we're in discussions on, but it would be
totally voluntury. Folks could make a donation to deal with the larger land stewardship goals
of the project.

' COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Commissioner Stefanics.
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COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Mr. Chair, on this point, since
Cummissioner Anaya brought it up I understand anyone can come to the County to get a
permiit for 2 green burial end that there are several burials such as this all over the county. So
this is not & new idea. But I would like to let you know that the campany you're dealing with
had g very bad experience with a friend of mine’s family who dicd. And they were not
preparcd ta deal with it: And I would bope that the business will et its act together before
they ever deal with a dead person and 2 family sgain. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER 1IOLIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Scott, I'm just sort of
wondering, of the 10,000 acres, how much has been purchased at this point and low much is
in a conscrvation casement at ihis point, )

MR. HOEFT: I need to zoofer with my colleague really guick. 8,500 has been
purchased and 1,250 15 ynder easemenl.

COMMISSIONER IHOLLAN; And the remaining part of the land is under
contsuct in some way or it’s being — it will be held until they can purchase i1?

MR. HOEEFT: Yes. Comeet.

COMMISSIONER 1JOLIAN: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN MONTOY A: Seeing no questions, this is a public hearing so il
anyone would like to testify on this case please come forward i

[The Tollowing speskers were all sworn in as u group. ]

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: So if you could all go shead and start. I'm going
10 give you cach two minutes and I nsk that we try not to be repetitive. If it is I'll ask you to
move to another point or ask that you cease your commenls al thul poeint. So 1 just ask for no
redundancy and go abead,

RICI PETERSON: Good evening, Mr. Chair and Commissioneérs. My name is
Rici Peterson and 1'm the executive director of the Santa Fe Conservalion Trust. We're

located at 316 Fast Marcy in Santa Fe. And I'm one of the people swom in just now. I'd like
to say that the Santa Fe Conscrvation Trust is the local land and trails organization and is o
very strong supporier of the Commonweal Conservancy Project. We feel that fhe variances
enhance the quality of life for current and future generntions as pert of their overall plan to
create a high standard of living, promole public health, and {0 protect more than 12,000 acres
of open natural land for people and wildlife.

At the Santa Fe Conservalion Trust our work is to provide landowners end
comununities with a partner io protect tac land that protects quality of life for all. And I'd like
lo say that if all developers and landowners worked the way that Commonweal is working
there wouldn't be need for land conscryation organizations like ours because they are
definitely acting in the leadership role 1 help ereate good, healthy communities and
sustainable land practices as well,

We are very proud at the Santa Fe Conscrvation Trust of the County”s leadership in
creating a sustainable land use code and we fecl that this project fits well within §t. We hope
that it will be approved and that it will scrve as a role model for oﬂ'}er developers in Sapta Fe
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County and eventually nationwide. This is how it oughl to be done. Thank you, g g
CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you, Rici. Next. o

JOE MILLER: My narme"s Joe Miller. ["ve been here before. 1 just want to 3:2 -

make some comments and go on the rscord here. We're probably the closest neighbors o this N
praject. You go down 285 and you tum west into theirs or you ean tum cast into ours. And [ w, :
just want to go on recard thal we have no objection to it ot all. I think it's a pood project and b s
going to add to the community, Thank you. = ;‘J
CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you, Joe. Next. o

RICHARD GRISCOM My name's Richard Griscom and I have been swom p

in. 22 Via La Puente, Galistco. T've been a resident (here since 1971, ' representing the
Galistco Planning Commission in being here tonight. I'm not sure 1 can do this in two
minules. Mr. Chair, but I'fil do my best.

CIIAIRMAN MONTOYA: Okay.

MR. GRISCOM: On June 12, 2007 the Galisteo Planning Committce
presenled (o the Boerd of County Comissioners a series of recommendations about this
praject. We in our recommendations we recommended approval of the project but based on
five conditians, And T want to talk for several seconds this evening about those conditions,
The Board of County Commissioners at that meeting in 2007 did accept ihe
rccommendations for conditions as a part of its approval.

Following that approval hy the County Commission, # coramitiee was formed in
Gulisteo of eipght volunteers to work with Commenweal in negotiating how the conditions
would be fulfilled. And the eight peopbe on that committee include representatives of the
three relevant orpanizations in Galistea, the Galisteo Water Board, the Ranchitos de Galisteo
Water Board, and the Galisteo Community Association.

The first of the five conditions was that the County require that the hydrological
assumplions used and the testing camicd out (o estimale water availability for the project be
as conscrvetive and thorvugh as possible, The committee engaged the services of Dr. Pepey
Johnson from the New Mexico Burcau of Gealogy nnd Mineral Resources to give us a repont
on thase guestions, whether the testing was thorough and wheiher the assumptions were
conservative, and her report came through affinnative that indeed that we could consider that
condition met,

The second condition was that (he total hydrological impact of the project be
evalualed by examining the water and waler requiremenis of all three phases of the project
before the final approval of phase 1., | understand — if [ understand the situation correctly, that
is heing done now by the Board. The Board is looking at the fact that this project is poing to
require 197 acre-feeet of water, not just 31. Thirty-onc is the figure for phase 1; 197 is the
figure for the whole projecl. And as I perceive the posture of what's happening at this and
prior meetings | think the Commission is taking all that into consideration, so I think that
condition is in the process of being met.

The third cendition was that Cammonweal be required to show beyond a reasonahle |
doubt that its Galisteo Basin Preserve will not cause an impairment of Galisteo’s wells. We !
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engaged the services of Mr. Neil Blandford with the cooperation of Commonweal 1o give us
an opinion on this question. His report eame through also affiemative that the project would
not cause an impairment of Galisteo™s wells.

The fourth condition was that in case the Galisteo Basin Preserve tied in with the
Eldorado Water and Sewage District for its water supply, that the Eldorado Lamy wells not
be drawn upoen for the projects’ water nzeds. This is something we need to keep an eye on.
s my undcrsianding that Commonweal does not intend to tic in with Eldorado, rather it
intends to tic in with the County, and the County’s water system. So if that’s the case then
this condition &lsa would be fulfilled. Bul it’s something we need to be uware of and keep an
cye on. We feel very strongly that the Lamy welis operaled by the Eldorado system have had
e ncgative effect on our alluvial aquifer and we don't wen! that negative effect to be
increased,

A [inal condition | want {o talk about is that Commanweal post a performance bond
10 puarantee that Galisteo's waler supply be restored to its condition prior to the development
if the water supply is impeired due to the development as established by a joint mumlormg
program. We were unable to get a perfarmance bond. It was our idca initially and in the
plunning comtiission to push for 2 performance bond, and (he County went along — the
Board went aloag with it, but when pusa came to shove and we staried contacting real estate
and insurance agents about that we weren't able to get one, The reply was uniformly it's too
fur in the foture. We were Jooking at 100-year impact. It's too speculative. We could not get a
policy.

We thcreforc agreed with Commonweal that we  would, in teu of that, that we would
try to forge an agreement between Galisteo and Commonweal Conservancy thal would
adequatcly protect us, and that's what we've been working oo for the Inst two ycars. An
agreement that includes several monitoing wells, and I wanted to mention earlier that the
CDRC made it a condition of ils approval in I think it was March of 2007, that there be a well
monitoring program sct up to monitor the impact of the Commonweal, if any, on Galistco's
wells, So we have negotiated for the past two years on this agreement that does imply (wo
monitoring wells on the Preserve, Jocated in a direct line between the Preserve and the
Village of Galisteo, And the thrust of the agreement is that if the water levels in those two
monitoring wells fall beyond & certain agreed upon point then it will be deemed - the
deeming will be made that Galisteo™s wells arc being impacted. And Commonweal will be
required af that pomt o teke action to ntake us whole and fo restore our water supply, even
though the dropping of the wells may not have occurred in the Village of Galisteo yet.

Commonweal would have at that point three options: to deliver waier to us through o
pipcline or another averiue; to drill a ncw well on the reserve for us; or to tic in with another
utility that would give us water. And Galisteo would have the choice. Galisteo would have
the choice of which of those three options would be accepiable. Galisten would not have to
accept the one that Commonweal initislly proposed. g
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So we're very closc to having 2 (inal agreement on that

ontracl Two of the three
Galisteo cntities that | mentioned earlier have signed off on it,

ommonweal is prepared to
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sign off on it, but the Galisteo Waler Association has some problems with it, so there's some g

further negotiation that nceds to happer. [ feel comfortable that given caough time that we c:g'
can reach an agreement that the Galistoa Water Board would support. So I'm prepared to k2

recommend that the Commission npprave this project, or phuse 1 of this project, again, with :3:

the understanding that that agreement will be finalized. I want to statc before closing that all -\"‘1\

sides, all four entities, Commonweal, the three Galisteo entities, have negotiated in good f:,":

fuith. We're very close to having a final agreement and I want to commend Commonweat for e

ils attitude in wanting to work with us. I think it's a rather new, innovalive and commendable ©ns

approach and I think it’s working, and with that I'H close and answer any questions that you e

might have. o

CHAIRMAN MONTOY A: Thank you. Next please,

DANIEL WERWATH: My name is Paniel Werwath with the Santa Fe
Community Housing Trust, 1111 Agua Fria Street, and [ am under oath. I’ll try and keep this
nicc and bricf and maybe make up some of Mr. Griscom’s time there, Just a few poinis | want
to make. One, Commonweal’s been consulting with us for several years on the afforduble
housing component of their plan and we like it and we agree with it The second big point is
that 1 think that we supporl this project on the basis of its innovation, especially in the areas
of sustainability. And the {hird poinl is just thial we're commiited to helping them markel
these affordable units and find appropriate buyers and income-qualify those folks for this
project. Thanks.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Next, please.

PAUL WHITE. My name is Paul White and I was sworn in. 94 Camino
Chupadero, Sanla Fe. First of all { wuni to say that | think this is an excellent project and |
encourage the County to approve this project. T du have concerns aboul the water supply from
the - if it would be from the Buckman Direct Diversion. There's a number of concemns as far
as the viability of the Buckman Direct Diversion project and [ do nol believe that the water
rights associated with the diversion arc sustainable. They are subject to downstream
litigation, currcntly in process right now, subject to drought, and | think it would be a mistake
lo continue planning using the Buckman Mirect Diversion for large-scale develapment plans,
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN MONTOY A: Thank you. Next, please.

FRED MILDER: My name is Fred Milder. 1 five at 52 West Basin Ridge in
Galistco and [ am under calh. 'L be very brief. Commonweal is one of the few if not the only
developers in this arca that is not developing for money, is not developing in a self-serving
fashion but is in facl developing tb serve the community that it intends to be building in. And
[ can’{ approve of this praject more thah that.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you, Fred. Next.

MITCH GUZACI1: My name is Mitch Guzach. I reside at 1899 Pacheco and I
was swom in carlier. Mr. Chair, members of the Commission, 1've been in the real estate
profession for 30 years, i)!us or minus, and on the other side of that a primary intcrest of mine
has been land use, sustainability, and issues about sprawl. And I was honored with a tour of
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the property by Mr. Harrison and 1 was really impressed with the concept of the cluster
development fo get away from the 20-acre rancheties and the 40-acre ranchettes and how
much more sustainable the whole projeet is by being condensed. So that I think is the major
point that [ want to say is that we've got a really forward-looking development here in terms
of the whole cluster concept,

I've got a concern about the walkz. | was looking at the property, one of the ways
was looking at was as a lender, beeause I'm in the moryage business, And I talked to my
underwriter, 1 aciually talked to a couple underwritcrs. And battom line, their major concemn
was, well, who's going to deliver the waler? And the conversation led to their conclusion
which was that the owner of the property was a more dependable source of waler than Ghe
County was. That there were jssues abolt cost. It was going to be difficult to be sble to
delermine what the cost was going 1o be, if we were hooked up to a County water system,
And then all the questions about water rights —who has senior rights? Who has junior rights?
Se from a financing standpoint there would be more solidity and security with the owner
being in charge of that decision, And the previous speaker talked about what those options
were. It ultimately may need to be the Gounty. It doesn’t secm to be & need at this point.

1 think that’s what 1 wanted to say, Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Okay. Thank you, Next, please,

JOANNE TROFIMUK: Joanne Trofimuk, 882 Camino Jos Abuelos in
Gulistzo, And I feel like the grinch, because 1 don’t agree with most of what (hese people
said. Galistea, all these water things have been studied, the hydrologists, arc hased on a 100-
year study. Galisteo hiave been there more than 100 years: And I think it is this Commission’s
responsibility to protect some of these little towns. 1 understand all aboul, and 1 think
certainly the conservancy issue and the group housing is fine. However, we are very
concerned about our water supply, And ] think Mr. Gascom overstated the fuct that
cverybody in Galisteo, we're going to come to (his sgreement.: We have nsked snother
hydrelogist to look at it, nol un & 100-ycar study, and she has found some things that are very
queslionable.

We talk about the health, safety and welfare of people. I'm concerned ghout the
health, safety and welfare of the residents of Galisteo. They are people that have there for
generations. And when you create something like this you are going lo have ail the expenses
that go with it for the County, You are poing to have police, fire, all of the things, all of the
problems that come with basically what is pofng to be a smal! city or small town, probably at
Icast 4,000 peuple, When you go to pay for those, the people who live in Galisten, the ones
who have lived there for generations, and not be able to pay the Laxes to suppor that, they are
the ones that will be relocated.

Fortunately, we have a graveyard in Galisteo. It's not green. It’s very inexpensive, and
the coyotes can’t dig them up. I think that this sounds pood on paper, but when you pet down
to jt it’s impracticel. One of the things is water conservation, They’re going (o colledt
rainwater. When we tried to do this coniract they said they didn’t want to be respo ible fora
vear where then: was drought. News flash: we are always in 2 drought, This is the d zseri. I've
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lived here for 25 years. This is the most moisture I've seen this winter in those 23 years. So
you can’t count on precipitation from the sky, And we are very concerned about pur water
supply. We are looking into it. We have got another attorney laoking at it. The fact that we
will have to passibly have them bus in water is not an answer for us. 1 mean, that doesn’l
make sense.

So, like [ said, I'm the grinch. ! don’t agree with any of this. T think building cluster
building is going to destroy all of these little towns, Cerrillus, Galisteo, Cadoneito, all of
these little New Mexico towns that makae us difTerent. And it is your obligation to protect us.

CHAIRMAN MONTOY A: Thank you. Next, pleasc,

WALTER WAIT: My name is Walter Wait, 48 Bonanzs Creek Road, Sunia
Fe, and [ have beea sworm in. Mr. Chait, members of the Commission, 1’m here representing
the San Marcos Association, and essentially for the San Marcos District Community Plan
Our plan docs edvocate Commonweal's efforts, mainly because of the 12,000 acres of open
space thal would border the San Marcos District. We're very, very — we think that it is very
imporiant to us that this planned cluster development will add to our open space. And when
you associate that with the Rancho Vigjo open spuce, the state and BLM land und our own
Cerrillos Park, that it creates a very important or even a vital aspeet of our future economy in
the San Marcas arca, So we really advouate the whole concept of this open spuce for us,
Thank you very much. We think it should be encouraged.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: It should be encouraged? Thank you. Next, please,

TERRY SMITH: My name is Terry Smith. ] live a1 7408 Old Sants Fe Trail,
and [ was sworn in earlier. 1'd like to associate myself with the remarks of the first speaker,
Rici Peterson. T scrved unti] December Jor three years as board chair of the Santa Fe
Conservation Trust, and just a bit of a vigneute, when land trusts suppor development it's
quite an amazing proposition. They don’t typically do that But when a developer is putting
96 percent of his or her land into permanent conservation easement 10 protect # from
development in perpetuity we think that’s a very significant and very important reality. And
we are alrcady holding the easements on the 1,250 acres that Commonweal has put under
easemenl. ] think an incredible investment by a development thal is nol yet fully and Bnally

approved has nonetheless moved forward to begin fulfilling its commitment to conserving the
land.

o1 aQTOT FTL0Q GAMIQIAN NI 248s

The first 17 miles of a planned 30-mile trail system are now in place, People are using
them regularly and enjoying them, and they are connective, They connect to the Community
College irai} system creating a whole naw area for people Lo hike and bike and enjoy the
outside. So 1 helieve that the project is a terrific model. On behalf of mysclf and reflecting the
sense of the board of the Santa Fe Conservation Trust T urge you 1o do whatever is necessary
to approve and 1o move the project forward.

CITATRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Next, please.

DAVID BACO.\]: David Bacon, 54 Sun Marcos Road Wesl. I'm sworn in,
The liitle work I've done with Ted has been of the very highest sort and T fecl that he’s taken
great pains and great care in det%.ils on this project. It strikes me that this project is exactly
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what we want to see going forward in Santa Fe County, especially in that parl of the county. |
just am very impressed with really everything he's done and especially again, to resonate with
many other péople, the opén space that he's set aside I think is really, really important And ]
think it"s e miodel that we need to follow. So T would urge support of it. Thank you.

CIIAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you, Next, please, There's room for three
up here at least here in the front.

DAVID HINKLE: My name is David Hinkle, 1 live at 3 Cerrado Drive in
Eldorado, 2nd 1 was affirmed to 1ell tha truth a few minutes back. I'm a professor of planning
at the University of New Mexico, and until tecently was the head of that progmam, and slso
the coordinator of natural resources ahd environmental planning. My students and I have
been doing research in hisarea, in the Galisteo Basin over the last ten years, We?ve worked
with community planning clements in CaBoacito, Lamy, Galisteo, Cerillos, San Marcos and
Santo Domingo. We've done waltershed studies and analyses of land health and monitored
this over the coirse of that time, both in cooperation with non—pmﬁt orgamzahous and also
with the State Environiment Deparimertt, looking at water issués and water qoality.

My sense is that the normal eltemative to this is lots of small scale development
which is much more injurious ta the landscupe and to watér resoiirces, that unfortunately,
many of the other kinds of preferved subdivisions elsewhere in this stale have not involved
much public input, except for under duress, and thiat there has been a consistent and wel)
founded and intentioned collaboraiion betwien the proposed properly developers und the
communities. And 1 think {his is'e sound project that should be supported. Thank you!

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you.

JAN-WILLEM JANSENS: My nitmie is Jan-Willem Jansens. I have been
sworn in. [ live at 770 Wesi Manhalian, Sants Fe, 87501, I'm here also as a fourth year
member of COLTPAC, executive direator of Earth Works Institute, and I've béen working
with Commonweal Conservancy since 2002 on Jand restoration and slewardship issues for
the proposcd arca, and for four years more in the Galisteo Watershed, working with issues of
community organizing regarding land nestoration und stewardship,

T'urge you all to udopl the proposed plan, including the proposed variances, and this is
why. ] think the Galisteo Basin Preserve realization is a critical piece in the landscape-wide
cultivation of the beauty und the valuable ccolopical and cultural resources of the Galisteo
Watershed. This plan really would help the security and intcgrify of the Iandscapc, CS]JG(:I&“}
because of the large-scale open space that's being preserved, plus the community that’s poing
to be there in place fo tuke care of that land, beeatise even if you have 12,000, 13,000 acres of
open spuce, the fact that you have a communil}' thal chooses to live there with the intcotion
and commitment to take care of the land in many dificrent ways is the key to success fora
landscape like this.

And why is this landscapc so imporiant? Well, in recent studies in the Galisteo
Watershed we've discovered thal four of the cight cco-regions of New Mexico come together
in the Galisico Watershed, and the Galisteo Basin Preserve is right in the middle, in the

ition zonc of these eco-regions. This explains why under the smoke of Santa Fe we set a
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lot of wildlife crossing east-west and narth-south across the Galisteo Creek, following the
different open space, grasslands, the different ereek systems, and the ridgelines.

We're doing more tresearch in tais and a lot of landowners have seen wildlife 81l over
the place. This wildlifc is not local. Ttis part of the continental. The spine of the continent’s
migration zones across the state and the Galistco Watershed is a major conservalion zone
conneeting different arcas across the state and across the continent. That's why we don’t want
lo have sprawl in this landscape, but a very thought-through wiy of development und peaple
who knaw how to fake care of this landscape. And just this form of development helps to do
this, to take care of these ccologicl resources that are there.

A lot of other things that T wanked 1o say have been said, so 1 think also the site’s
carctaking, this form of development will invite innovation. Innovation in a lot of ways is
stewardship and restoration of the land and the conservation of resources that are very scare,
such as water. And the variances that are being asked lead o just the compactness and the
integrity of the form of development that"s being proposed here and with that the integrity of
the lundscape surrounding it. So therelore again, 1 think this is the best thinkable solution and
opportunity for this landscape. Thank you for your peeservation of this apportunily.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Next, please.

BOB KRIEGER: My name is Bob Krieger. § live at 46 Centavrus Ranch Road
in Aldea. Obvinusly, we agree growth will oceur with or without our input and without green
initiatives, The first speaker described this as leadership in development. I'm a member of the
US Green Building Council, not Burial Council, and a5 a member of this and also the local
Green Builders Guild, a subset of the Homebuilders Association, and we're commiitted to
green und we expect to be building in there as a group of small, independent businesses. So
local businesses, local employment, fo¢al business gencration as opposed to exporting doliars
like Centex does out of state,

So our commitment is to do good while doing well. Right now, none of us are doing
well and we're still doing good. If one of your obligations indced is to protect, 25 was
wentionad earlier, it is also an obligation 1 believe, for you to pian. And this is a very weli
planned development.

CHATRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Next, please.

ALICIA NATION: I'm Alicia Nation. I'm bere to represent the New Mexico
Mustang and Burre Association, [ came to the County with a discussion & few months ago to
the Plunning Department for a project which would involve bringing wild horses to the area
as part of an educational and sustainability education program. This would provide
opportunities for young people and for the community at large to learn about sustainable food
production, sustainable land management and to have cducational opportunities while at the
same time creating a place in New Mentico for a small placement of wild horses.

It was suggested that T go and visit with Ted Harrison and he’s a very busy gentleman.
THinally gol around to meet him. And T can tcll you [ was extraordinarily impressed by this
gentleman. He was very, very thoughiful in considering my concems and very much integrity
with the project that he had planncd and averall use of the land in terms of all of the ureas of
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communily obligation that he needs to meet. One thing tha has impressed me about the
Galisteo Basin Prescrve project is that it is  communj ty project. It is inclusive. It invites
People to come on 1o the land and to experience the trails there. It opens the property to
many, many different uses, consideratian of a community including wildlife, including the
land itsclf, including the people in the area, including the resources, It's more than a
community when we think of an economic community. It's & community where all aspéels of
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our cxpcﬁc‘lnce in the ecosystem are needing to be nurtured and preserved and that's what 1 "__j‘;
see him doiig. _ o
In my conversations with Ted Harrison we discussed the possibility of having a small o

placement of wild horses on the land there. This would be an opporiunity for New Mexicans
to experience something which we would have 1o ga very, very far away lo expericnee,
Something very positive, :

In my conversations with him, another topic came up which quite frankly stunned me
when Mr. Harrison'expressed a willingmass to consider this. | am one of over 50 million people
in the United States who suffer from enyironmental iliness. Environmental iliness is a disease
which you can't see butis very debilitating, There are many, many people in the Sanla Fe arca
who suifer from this disability and rou would not know them when you meet them. It meuns
sorne days you might sec me on alerl, anc another day, aftcr I've had an exposure, which might
happen in a privale home, where I would be quite sick. Many people never pet out of the house.

When [ suggesied to Mr., TTamison that perhaps in the affordable housing realm he might
be able to make some accommodations i address serving & population like this, he was
extremely receptive. I provided him with an extensive fist of things and he looked at it and said,
you knaw, we can look al this and consider this as  possiility.

So besitles creating an opportunity for the comemunity at large (o enjoy and to appreciate
and to conserve the lind we have un opportunity with this management here with the
Commonweal to address u population that is hugely underserved in Santa Fe Coumty. People
who have chronic fitigue, environmenta! Llness and similar discases, oflen end up sleeping in
Their cars because they do not have a safe place to live. The normal home environment is not
safe for these people. Bul ceniain accommodations made jn the course of building affordable
housing could accommodate many of these people and create opportunities for peaple to bave
suceesstul and meaningful lives.

S0 in additicn to supporting the pruject here for its conservancy and its overali
community excellent planning, [ would encowrage the Counly to work with Commonweal to
develop opportunities for affordable housing that s also environmentully safe for the peoplc in
the community who desperately need those resources far residences. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you, Next, please,

MURIEL FARIELLO: My name is Muriel Fariello. 1 live at 35 Caming Los
Angelitos in Galisteo, New Mexico. I'm secrelary-treasurer for the Water Users Association for
Ranchilos de Galisteo and I'm also on the communily association. [ also have involved

with working with Richard Griscom and the kroup that was put together to bang out a contract
with Commonweal. |
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My concems are the scope of the project. I think it’s too big in scope, in my personal
upinion. I don't think there’s enough water to sustain 2,000 houses up there or whatever's there, oo
the number of people that will be brought fo the land. But unything like that is going to have a sicm
tremendous impact on our lifestyle down in Galisteo, bl
Eldorado is leoking for increased water rights. Saddieback Ranch is loaking o breal
down inlo 50 parcels. Cimasron Village is just heating up and now Commonwea). Each says
they have 100 years of water rights. What is that? 400 years? | don’t know haw these studies are o
done. | don't know how in good conscience we can mave forward wilh a lot of these projects on
the basis of the same, Office of the State Fagineer, same reporting, looking at the same oumbers -
und coming up with them. Our wells haven’t dropped yet, but people up river, their wells have
dropped. Hacienda Tranquila, those wells haye dropped precipitously. And we're very
concerned sbout the water, Thank vou.
CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Next, please,
COURTNEY WHITE: My namc is Courtney White. T live at 22 Avenida de
Monte Alto in Eldorado and I've been sworn in. M. Chair, I'm here representing the Quivira
Coulition, which is a nan-profit based here in Santa Ve, We work with ranchers across the
region. We do work in support of sustaimuble agriculture, land restoration and we've done some
ranching ourselves, actuatly, up on Rowo Mesa. | approached Ted Harrison of Comemonwea)
ahaut ¢ight or nine months ago with the idea of maybe luming out some cows an Thomton
Ranch, there on Commonweal property with the idea of creating a demonstration project o take
what we've learned in our work about suptainable food production, local grass-fed food
production, to kind of u level higher, which is to look at thesc landscapes potentially for climate
change mitigation, which sounds kind of crazy but actually there's a Jot of work going on
around the country on how to sequester curbon in suils and in plants through sustainable
agriculturn! uses. It's » way of increasing business diversification for ranchers, it pives
tremendous opportunitics for folks who swant to try these kinds of practices.
We want to try a littlc project on Commonweal’s property, We're in discussion with
Ted and Commonweal about that. 1 think the possibilitics ana uctually quite interesting. We
would manage the animals in s way to improvc land health, grow more grass, would produce
local grass-fed foad. 1'd like to take some of that meat, for example, and apply it to the
Lldorado community school my children Eo to. A friend of mine has a program in Tueson he
calls Tacos Sin Carbon.
So U'm here in suppart of this project und in support of what Commonweal is trying to
do with all of its various innovative elemcnts and hopz that you wiil approve it tonight.
‘Thank vou,

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Next, please. How many more are
coming forward? Okay, if you'd come closer please,

TED FLEMING: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Commissioners. | was sworn ig
carlier. My name is Ted Fleming. I'm architect, a sculptor. I've lived in Galisteo for 13 years
und I’'m also a member of the water board. I'd like (o talk just on the broader concept. There's
been a lot of good information abaut specific things but T was hoping just to talk shout the
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overall project. I'm working with the premisc that development in the Galistzo Basin is
incvitable, and I think thal maybe kind of ridiculously obvious. We're all here for | believe
that reason. That’s why you all are working as hard as you do, But I do think (here are some
ways of thinking that 1 would tend to believe that it’s possible to stop any or perhaps all
development in the Galisteo Basin in jis tracks.

1 think that's unrealistic end T wani 10 Lalk about that, and T also think that posture Ba
disallows creative thmkmg And I think what we're loaking a1 here is extremely creative =N
thinking. In my opinion the question is not if but how dcvelapmem proceeds hete; and how to e
plan for it and manage it intelligently, as opposed to from a point of fear, but rather
intelligently. And 1 sjress the word planning. Commissioner Anaya, I remember in the last
BCC hearing, and this has really staye¢ with meé. You talked about going to schéol on the bus
in the momning. Going through what is now Eldorado and seeing - T think you said one house.
T can't think of a better example of a cantemporary context of what's gone on in this arca
which we know is thousends of yeays old; but 1o see what is now Eldorado over that relatively
shon spun of time, 1 think is extrmordinary.

As 1 said, I've been in Galisteo — 1'm o newcomer. ['ve only been there for 13 years.
But in that time 1've seen 15 new houses buflt just within the historic distriey just within the
boundaries of our historic village. That represents a 25 percent increase in density as was the
village 13 ycais ago. At this rate, just a: this rate, our village.will double in size by the year
2048. [ hope I'm wrong, 1 hope that doesn't hapipen, bist that®s the direction that things are
going in and it cerdainly is allowﬁabl_e well allowable within the zoning restrictions. So that
doubling of the populaiion could happdn within my children’s lifetime.

So as you think about how healthy this land was bifore human setilement, before
highways and suburban sprawl. And then if you will, and with all due respeet to those who
live there, think abowt Eldorado on the Thomton Ranch. Think what thal would be like, haw
that would afTect Galisteo. The Comménweal project preserves and also restores open Space,
and the restoration aspect [ think is a buge part of this. It’s the antithests of siandard suburban
development. So these rext comments are based on what T saw happening last time and I'm
really glad to see how the County s1afT and the Commission has moved forward with thinking
to incorporate what hes been planned for in the College District, But I do wanl 10'stréss that if
that kind of thinking were abandoned, if the old adage, if the old plan of typical suburban
planning where held, which might deny Commonweal its ability to move forward, I really do
believe thal we're left with something very much like, if not exactly like or maybe worse than
Eldorado on the Thurnton Ranch. There's no uncncumbered open space. Continued
depredation of the land and a much greater, much more direcl negative impact on Galisieo,

Ttruly believe that the Galisteo Basin Preserve project represents the true hope for this
tegion. That kingd of thinking T believe represents the true hope for us. So I respectfully urpe
you, Commissioners, to grant Commosnweal the variances they've requested and aflow them
to move forward. T believe in doing $o this would represcnt true collective wisdom, long-
runge thinking and lcadership. Thank you very much,

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Next, please.
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FRAN HARDY: I've been sworn in. Fran Hardy, 31 Old Road, Lamy. My
husband and I bike ride all the time in the 285 Comidor since we live in Lamy, and we wene
zipping down Lamy Crest and we saw the first sign for the Galisteo Basin Preserve and |
said, oh, Ged, more development. Decause | really love thet basin, I"m not an original
resident of New Mexico but 1 love the small communities. 1 fove the whole feeling of New
Mexico. Twant to spend the rest of my days here and I’m very concerned about development.
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But ] went on line to their website and I said, oh, my God, this is totally different that H:‘_,
business os usual. And we went over and we talked 10 Ted and we walked around and we got o
1o know aboul this project and i*ve been very impressed all the way through with Ted and Z

what he docs.

One of the first things he did was put (rails in. Not just as a sea eliff out in California
{or wealthy residents to walk but for the whole community. For everybody. And every time |
go over there to hike T encounter people mountain biking, hiking and on borscback that are
assumning that this project is going to lappen because they're reatly excited that they have this
beautifil place (v enjoy now, this public land. And I tell them, plcase contact your
Commissioners, because these people ure from all over. Some are from Eldorado. Some are
from much further away. Please let tham know thal you support this project, because il you
don’t this may not happen and these traits will become development. So please let them
knuw, Because those people are thinking that this is done-deal, that that this project is poing
to happen. So they're counting on you to preserve these 13,000 acres and 1 really hope that
you'll do that. :

And in terms of the people of Galisleo, | really empathize. 1 think that the whale of
this state and the small communities do need to think ebout water but [ think we need to do
that on a statewide basis. I think that what Commonweal is proposing and 1've gone over and
had John Dillon dig in that arroyo that he's restoring and showing me how close Lo the
surface the watcr is there now thel he’s been restoring that arroyo. Thesc arc the kinds of
things that Commonweal is putting thair money inlo, not building a suburban community but
restoring the land. And it was amazing how close 1o the surface that water was in the middle
of summer when everything else was toially parched around it.

So this is the kind of things that they're doing. This is going to help the people of
Galisteo but I’d alsv like to see the County not put the whole thing on Commonweal, that it's
Lheir fault if Galistco doesn’t have water, Galisteo hus 1 Jong-term problem that needs to be
addressed by the County, whether it's Buckman — I"'m not a hydrologist. [ don’t know what
the solution is, The problem is not Commonweal; the problem is that Galisteo has water
problems.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Okny, this is e public hearing. Would you plcasc
sit down, Thank you. Next please,

NEIL BLANDFORD: My name is Neil Blandford, 7617 Northridge Avenue
NE, Albuguerque, New Mexico. I'm e principal hydrologist with Daniel B. Stevens and
Associntes. 1 conducted the $tudy, or a study for the Village of Galisteo, considering the water
supply for the propased development and the potential effeets on the Village. Subsequent to
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that study | met with representatives of the Village, three of which have spoken here tonight,
and Mr. Griscom mentioned me carlicr,

Essentially, my conclusions were that they cffects of the proposed development, if the &
entire watcr supply of 195 acre-feel wyre taken from the development area itsell would be
negligible on the Villuge wells. And I’m not gaing to ga through all of that analysis here but &

o

if you have questions about that I'd be happy to answer them now or et a later time during s

this hearing. B

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Arc there any questions st this point? All right. o

Thank you. ; °
BRENT BONWELI.: My name is Brent Bonwell, 31 Agua Viviende, and |

am under oath, Ted asked me to - I'm a cyclist and been living on the 285 Corridor on the.
enst side of 285 for almost 20 years and ridden oul there, I ride litetally thousands of miles
per year, 1e indicated that Commissioner Stefanies ad some qucstmns about bike lanes,
possibly on these roads and conterns about the widths that arc in some of these edjustments
that they’re asking for. From the standpoint of a cyclist, on these areas where there's very low
traflic, particularly residentinl arcas with no curbside parking the wudlhs_ of the road should
not be of concern. On (he main arerial roads from the Village to 285 it's my understanding
there will be a scparate off main arferial road path as they have in Eldorudo 10 supply
cascment for cyclisis or hikers, sg it would not be in the main arterjal roads. But in the
subartcrial roads and the residential streets themselves the amount of trafiic that's in there
would be neglipible compared to the cyclist and thal should be fine.

Also, as a resident out there, 'm not a resident of Eldorado so I°m not legally altowed
into Eldorado wildernesy area; [ have to trespass if 1 go out there. But the prescrve, when they
built their Ir'uls they welcomed the “lmle community and {'ve been an enthusiastic user of
those trails and reall y supporl what they re doing out there and wanted to address those
concerns and express my support for this praject. 1 am also a member of COLTPAC for the
central area region, so you know that as well, but | am speaking as an individual and a
resident of the 285 Corridor.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you, Next please.

LUCY LIPPARD: | have been ssvom in. My name is Lucy Lipppard, 14
Avenida Vieja in Galisteo. I too live in Galisteo and I too love it. And I actually do have
water problems. I'm not here to talk about my waier problems but | have been haulinip water
Tor about six or scven years und the Village system cannot accommodate me. But that’s nol
why 'm here, | care about the landscagie in Galisteo. I'm a wriler und | write often sbout
landscape. And it worries me terribly that if with the usual Ranchette kind of development
which everybody is going on about and T agree with wha(’s been suid, that the beautiful licde
village of Galisteo will be simply swallowed up by suburbia. And its rural character will be
lost, its historic character will be lost. The archeologists have atready been trying to protect
all the archeologlcaﬂ sites in the Galisloo Basin. it's a different plice, | know this sounds kind
| of like not in my backyard, but the fact remaing that this is such a special placc | think it

| deserves to be preserved and not swallowed up by runchettes. Thank you.
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CIIAIRMAN MONTO'Y A: Thank you. Next,

SUBY BOWDEN: Mr. Chair, Commissioners, my name is Suby Bowden. |
have been swom in under oath. My address is 333 Montezuma Avenue. Tonight, you're
abviously here 1o vole on variances und so the focus of my talk will be the variances in
pariicular. Traditionally, the majority of the variances that you address are individual for the
pursuit of an individual property owner, an individual developer. There is a second type of
variance, which is essentially commuréty variances, what we call planaing and changiop of
code. And there’s a Jeng history of coce changes, variances in this community thal T think
that Commonweal is a very fundamental aspect of.

Commonwea! s you've heard tonight is 8 community variance. All of the verinnces
that have been requested are site-basec. They're widths of roud or they're heights. These are
nut randomly requested. Commonweal carly on analyzed their site to determine where
locations could be that would not be seen my any of the highwuys or the village of Lamy &nd
(alisteo. That led them to their current site, They also analyzed passive selar in order to
reduce encrgy use for our community and they also looked at the fragile ecosystems of the
grasslands since the dominance ol the Eldorado development,

S0 in the process of their choosing to analyze all these before picking a site it led
them to a hillside. Now, that is more costly development for any developer. No developer
would normally pick a hillsidc to builé on. But it did lead 1o a hillside in their effort lo
protect the community end think about the community. And in that process the widths of
roads are typically narrower in a hillside community, as you’ve witnessed all over the world,
and they also require greater heights in onder that buildings can look over other buildings and
receive passive solar,

The five major community-baszd variunces thal I've seen in the Santa Fe area |
consider Commonweal to be number five. The first onc is the Law of the Indies, which chosc
to have a very compact densily and namrow streets, and that was obviously in the 1600s, In the
18003 the communitics of Santa Fe and Lamy and Galisteo began to spread out, have wider
roads, have greater property between houscs. In the 1940s what we know as today's
subdivisions occurred, and (hat in Sania Fe became Casa Solana and (he west side of St.
Francis, and today it is Eldorado &s a quitc dominant landform for the county.

And then in the 1980s the Rancho Viejo and your own Land Use Department chosc 10
choosc & new major variance, and to implement it into Code, and that was the Community
College Distriet. And instead of the tradition from the 1600s through to the §980s of
expanding, cxpanding, expanding and using more land, your County made 2 major change,
major variances, and began to pull the community back 1ogether into greater density and
narrower roads, And the only differenae between - there are two major differences hetween
that and Commonweal. Rancho Viejo aus never committed Lo protect all the rest of their land
as open space. They'll be equal in size to the City of Santa Fe someday. Commonweal chose
to protect open space and they chose a hillside, and that hillside requires minor variances for

roads, four locations where intersections will be closer than 75 {eet 1o a stop sign, and 13
locations where fire rucks wilt be on more of a slape than they traditionally are if vou're
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down in the grasstands.

L consider these very, minor variances for the tremendons community good. And so I
please encourage you (o approve the variances tooight and to actually apply them into Code
in your Sustainability Land Development Plan as your own Land Use Administrator, Jack
Kolkmeyer, has stated, these project variances do not pose any threats tp health, safety und
welfare concems, and most of them may in facl not be variances under the proposed new
Sustuinability Lind Development Plan and Code. Thank ¥ou very much,

in CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you.

JOE SEHEE: My name is Joe Schee, | live at 8 Destacada Court. 1d like to
say that I don’t huve a dog in the race but I fecl like ] hove a litter tight now: I relocated my
family five years sgo becanse Iwiis so moved by the vision of Ted Hurrison &nd {he
Commonweal Consgrviiney for this new kind of community. 1 also came oul o help bring
forward the first green cemetery in the state, which I do really belicve bas enormons potential
for facilitating Jandscape level conservation and coological restoration and being &
tremendous amenity for, the community,

1 wanted to comment on u couple things that were mentioned in our last meeting here,
one being that ’@gr_q_mayg;g.t be enough families interested in this kind of community and
having lived in Eldorado for the past five years T've come to Jearn that there are many
families wanting angllerqauvc lo,the sibgle-family, detached [inaudible] of mnchette that is
o available in the southern part of the county.

And 1 found it intcresting that tht: word utopian was used somewhat pejoratively last
session, and in fact the fact that this communily has such a big vision is ane of the reasons [
thik we should find  way 10 support it. I think it has the potentiul to inspire others to
embrace u new cthic in market-based cohservation and in development and the fact the
project has been held up nlready to inspire others. I've met sume of you through Leadership
Santa Fe ! was a participant as wes Commissioner Holinn & couple years ago, and most
recently served as chairmun of the organization. And for several years we had ene project to
choose from a development project that would show what a development could and should
look like and it was this very project that was brought forward to teach futurc Jeaders of Santa
Fe, which I think is significant.

And I'want to finally, following up on what was just said previously say these
varianees seem enormously minor compared to the tremendous public good that it going to
be generated by this project. And there's  lat of precedents fur them being used. I was an
affordable bousing for o aumber of years and learned thal until developers were incentivized
properly, until there was f; ast-tracking and variances, and such incentives, we hid a rally
hard time getting affordable housing developed. 1 really hope that beyond this project we can
us a County figure out ways to premulgaie policies so that more Commanweal Conservancies
will be inspired (o come forward, Thank you.

CHATRMAN MONTOYA: Thank you. Is that {t? Okay. How many more? S
this is the last festimony we'll take.

RODNEY HALL: My name is Rodney Hall, 11-VC, Galisteo, New Mexico,
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and I'm under oath. The plan sounds really nice, So far, nobody’s talked about where the
water is going to come from. We're talking possibly 2,000 to 5,000 people in an area that has
very little water. Galisteo is currently threatened by the pumping of the Lamy wells by
Eldorado, by proposed developments at Saddieback, and we're looking now at a very large
development and no one can say where the water's camting from. It may come from the
County, it may come from Eidorado, and we can’t get any answers ahout where that water is
going to come from. And we're afraid that it's going to came ou of the Galisteo Creek,
which will mean that our wells will be in jeopardy:.

1 would like to request that the Commission table this issue until water supply for this
development can be established.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Thank youw. Okay. Se this public hearing is now
closed. Commissioncr Holian,

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Mr, Chair, T move for opproval of CDRC Case
06-5031 with approval of the variances.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: I'll second.

CHAIRMAN MONTOY A: Have a molion by Commissioner 1lolian, second
by Commissioncr Stefanics. Discussion? Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Mr, Chair, This is an interesting
situation. We have a 12,000-aere ranch in the Galisteo Basin. The heirs of the mnch do not
want (o be ranchers any longer. They want to sell it. So who is going to buy this ranch? It's
possible that unother rancher might come along and want 1o buy the runch and thot would be
great, but [ think in this cconumic concition, in the cconomic times that we're in now and
other situations I think it's highly unlilaely that » mncher would come atong,

Is the County guing to buy this for open space? That's extremely unlikely. We
nciually don’t have any money for open space at all anymore. We're considering passing a
bond issue in the future but as of now we don’t have the money and what's going to happen
when the next big ranch comes along for salc? It's most likely that a developer or developers
would buy this land, and if we were to develop in the traditional model that we have over the
past years, what would that look like? It would be divided up into 40-ncre lots, and then 20-
acre lots and then |0-ecre Jots and we'd probably get down to 2.5-acre lats after a while.

And what would we have? We'd have a paichwork of homes. We'd have a spider weh
of ronds that would shatier the wildlife habitat and the agricullurally productive land. So the
designers of the prescrve have an idea, and 1 think that [ won’t repeat all that has been said
this evening about all the good features of this particular concept, but I would like to
particularly highlight that their consideration of land conservation is almost unprecedented.
You just Inok st the sheer arca of the open space that is being preserved. And what I think is
particularly comumendable: is that they are actually incorporating food production into their
idcas. They've already planted a fruit tree orchard. They have plans for community gardens,
and most intcresting of all, the:y'reI going to actually be eonsidering grazing catile. If cattle
grazing is done properly it can actually be a land restoration technique. It can be a technique
to bring the grasslands back. And if we bring the grasslands buck in that arex what does that
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mcan? [t means that the water, when it rains and the water hits the ground, instead of fowing

off and creating crosion and poing off to be evaporated somewhere it will actually soak intp
the ground. It will actually help our aguifers.

So I know that this is nof the last larpe ranch that is going to come on the market out

in that area and we néed creative solutibns as to how to deal with the economic realitics thal
we're faced with as well as, at the samd time, to preserve the open spoce. And I believe that
Trenza planned community is that solufion, Thank you. \

CHATRMAN MONTOYA: Okay. Commissianer Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. When you all were
talking 1 was thinking about Bruce King, because Bruce King would say, I got friends that arc
against it and I got fricnds that are for it, and I'm for my friends, But I want to thank al] of
you for your comments, whether they were for it of 2gainst the projecl. 1 want to thank Ted
and Scatt for their hard work and for them meeling with the communities. 1 want to thank Ian
for rneeting with me after the first meetng, or the last meeting we had to go over each of the
variances, and 1 appreciate you coming in and talking to me about that, Jan. Thank you.

I have o question for staff and that is on the firc impact fees that will be gedcrated

from the building permits, what district they go to? 1 believe they would po to the Cldorado
District but I want {o meke sure that if this gets approved that those impact fees be splitup 10
the Galisteo District and the Eldorado District,

MS, LUCERO: Mr. Chair, Commis
within the Eldorado Fire District, o typically,

there's 2 mechimism for changing thal,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: If ] could make an amendment, an extra
condition that thosc fire impact fees be 3plit up ond go the Eldorado and Galisteo, because
they”lt be the ones responding, ;

I'want to thank you alf for naming the project a different name than the Village at
Galisteo Preserve, because now Trenza is definitely different. And when [ heard the name it
reminded me of my daughter, because sl always had trenzas. Thank you all for idcluding the
cemetery, because we always put in devélopments and we forpet that after we pass oh we
uced places to put thosc individuals so thank you for doing that.

T think that in these tough times that if we siipport this it will create jobs and stimulate
our economy in Santa Fe County. And a lot of these issues that we talk aboul in terms of
water and watcr availability rely

on staff, And their comments and concerns, and I want to
thank staff for their hard work because it’s not been easy. And we can’t - I wonder ahout
waler too, I have a well in Galistco and 1 hope it never gocs dry bul we have to rely on the

experts that are out there to teil us whether we're going to have waler or not, 5o | rely on
them.

ot 00I00/ F2,00Q _THOHOOHAY HHMITY D4SS

stoner Anaya, the developmeat js located
that’s where the fees would go. | don't know if

1 think that the Galisteo comm

unity working closely with Ted and his group, with the
Give conditions that were brough

t up a few years ago by the community of Galisteo and
Richar’:l Griscom. I'm glad to sce that mast of them or all of

them are going {o be met. That's
alll ha‘ve, Mr. Chair. Thank you. !
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CITAIRMAN MONTOYA: Okay. Commissinner Stefanics? Commissioner
Holian.
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COMMISSIONER HOZIAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. 1 actually wanied to add
ane condition to the list of conditions here and that is for a well monitoring agreement 1o be
worked out with the Galistco Water Board. They had mentioned that as their fifih - yes, I'm
making a motion ~ I'm amending my awn.

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: You're amending your motion to add this

condition.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Yes. Arother condition,

CHARMAN MONTOYA: So that’s 24.

COMMISSIONER {IOLIAN: Shetley?

MS. COBAU: Mr. Chair, members of the Commission we™d like to point out
that we miet with the epplicant yesterday and we would alike to allow the applicant to ask for
an amendment to the conditions that stafl had added. I think that their request for an
amendment to thuse two conditions was valid and will make the conditions more enforceable
in the future. So if the applicant could ask for those | would reatly appreciate it. )

MR. 1IQLFT: Commissioner Hotizn, I concur with your condilfion thal you
just added. And condition #19 and #20 is what we talked about at length with Shelley and
Vicki yesterday, And we just wantcd o tulk onto the end of the last tlternative solution as
approved by the Public Works Director prior to final plat submittal. Thank you.

CHATRMAN MONTOYA: So that’s on both #£19 and #207
MR. HOEFT: That's correct.

CTIATRMAN MONTOY A: Ckay. So would the maker of the motion accept
those changes?

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Yes,

CHATRMAN MONTOYA: Okay. Scconder?

COMMISSIONER. STRFANICS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN MONTOY A: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes. About the impact fees. Docs the
Commission agree to that? Putting that on? Okay.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Sa just a point of clarification. You're
asking that they be split?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Since it's right in the middle of both districts,
ad {hey™l! both be responding.

COMMISSIONER STFFANICS: And let me ask staff, is Lamy in the
Eldorado Fire District? Shelley?

MS. COBAU: We believe so, Mr, Chair, Commissioner Stefanics. We may
have a map here, Just give us 3 moment and we'lt check.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Sa while you’Tc Jooking that up, this is a

question, Mr. Chair, for staff. When a fire call comes in, it goes to the RECC? And then they
dispatch it?
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MS. COBAU: Mr. Chair, Commissioner: Stefanics, 1 believe that's correct,
And we did meet with Buster Patty at kength about the Vil[agc at Galisteo Basin Preserve
because fire was involved in some of {1c impacts of the variancas that were proposed. And
Captain Patty had mdu:atcd that firs| | response would come from Eldorado in this cuse.

COMMISSIONER STFFANICS Sn my qu.csﬂun is, il Eldorado is contacied
how would Ga];st:o ever !cam about the call? Just be self: ~monitoring the radio?

MS, COBAU ‘They might not leam of it, unless they were needed. If they
didn't have enough response with the gali to Eldorado and they pet there then T doa’t know
why they would call another districl; unless there were a larpe prass fire or something that
they needed more equipment on. But that would definitely bera question for Caplain Paty or
oae of the other Fire Depariment memers. [ can't spcak 10 that cxactly. i

COMM]‘{SIONER STl?.I‘ANlCS Well. Mr, Chair and Commissioner Annya,
I recognize the propm‘ty caughl bct\mcn lhe twa. [ just uuuld want 1o make sure that if
Galistca received 8 portion of the, fee thm they then would be involved in activity.

COMMI IONER ANJ\YA Mr, Chair, - -

(,HAJ.I{MAN MONTOYA Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIO\IER ANAYA: 1f we could — if there’s a call in this arca that the
both page out, on Eldorado am:l Gal:sluo

MR. ROSS ,ch Mr Chair, Commissioner Anaya, we’d have to look al those
RECC protocols and 500 “hal the rulés are, [ know they have Jots of rules and who they call
and when they call and whcn thc}' call for backup and slu(T like that. The other thing that we
were just talking about is we’re not really sure that you can split impact fees, so we'd like to
check that and report back to you quickly. 1 don’t think you should change your motion but
il"s possible sinte law or our ordinance, which none of us have looked al in a while, might
have some guidelines, So we'd like to check that and make sure it’s okay 10 do that,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Qkay,

CHAIRMAN MONTOYA: Any other discussion? Is there anything clse?
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The motion passed by unaninwus [4-0] voice vote. [Commissioner Vigil was nol
present for this action.]



Member Anaya asked if there were any utilities within the easement. Mr. Tercero
stated the gas line is in the 38-foot proposed easement along with the well. The gas line is
within 20 feet. He said there is only one family past the lot which already has all utilities
within the original 15-foot easement. No one would be landlocked by what they propose.

Member Gonzales noted that the plat makes mention of an emergency vehicle
turnaround. He suggested making provisions for a tumaround at the end rather than
having the entire road widened. Member Gonzales noted the report says water and sewer
are both 2,000 feet away. He asked if they would be willing to hook up when they are
nearer. Ms. Tercero stated they invested heavily in having the wells drilled and she did
not want to cause problems for their children in the future. The lot is not amenable to
having greater density than two lots due to the presence of arroyos.

Mr. Tercero described the acreage of the nearby properties.

Member Katz asked for staff clarification on the easement requirements, Ms.
Lucero said the code requires a 38-foot easement for any roads that are accessing three or
more lots, however, that could be reduced to 20 feet with adequate drainage control.
Member Katz suggested these issues should be clarified before the CDRC makes a
decision.

Mr. Romero said hooking up to community water and sewer were triggered when
they were within 200 feet. Ms. Lucero recommended tabling the case to clear up the
various issues.

Member Katz moved to table and Member Anaya seconded. The motion passed
unanimously [5-0)

F. CDRC CASE # Z 06-5033 Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve (“Trenza”)
Master Plan Amendment. Commonweal Conservancy (Ted Harrison),
Applicant, requests a Master Plan Amendment to a previously approved
Master Plan to reconfigure the Planning Envelope from 10,360 acres to 3,560
acres, to reduce the size of the development from 965 dwelling units and
150,000 square feet of commercial and civic land uses to 450 dwelling units
and 88,500 square feet of mixed use, commercial and civic land uses, a green
cemetery and a 60-seat outdoor amphitheater. The Applicant also requests a
modification of the original five-phase development to six phases that would
take place over a period of 12 years. The property is located south of
Eldorado, west off US 285, south of the railroad tracks, within Sections 1, 3,
11-14 23 and 24, Township 14 North, Range 9 East; Sections 5-7 and 18,
Township 14 Nerth, Range 10 East; Sections 34-36, Township 15 North,
Range 9 East; and Sections 30 and 31, Township 15 North, Rangel0 East
(Comimission District 5)

Vicente Archuleta read the case caption and gave the following staff report:

“On June 12, 2007, the Board of County Commissioners granted Master Plan
Zoning approval for a mixed-use development consisting of 965 residential units;
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150,000 square feet of commercial, institutional, educational, and recreational
land uses; and open space, parks, and trails on 10,316 acres.

“On February 9, 2010, the BCC granted Preliminary Plat and Development Plan
approval for Phase I of the referenced subdivision which consisted of 131 single
family residential lots and three multi-family residential lots for a total of 149
residential units, and five non-residential lots within a 60-acre development
envelope. This approval was set to expire on February 9, 2012.

“On December 13, 2011, the BCC granted a 36-month time extension of the
previously approved Preliminary Plat and Development Plan for Phase 1 which
consists of 131 single-family residential lots, three multi-family residéntial lots
for a total of 149 residential units and five non-residential lots within a 60-acre
development envelope within the 10,316 acre area. A new Preliminary and Final
Plat conforming to the Master Plan will need to be submitted. This time extension
is set to expire on Feb 9, 2015.

“The Applicant now requests a Master Plan Amendment to reconfigure the
Planning Envelope from 10,360 acres to 3,560 acres, to reduce the size of the
development from 965 dwelling units and 150,000 square feet of commercial and
civic land uses to 450 dwelling units and 88,500 square feet of mixed use,
commercial and civic land uses, a green cemetery and a 60-seat outdoor
amphitheater, and also requests a revision of the original five-phase development
to six phases that would take place over a period of 12 years.

“The Applicant states: ‘In the face of a deep and protracted economic recession,
Commonweal has been re-evaluating its economic opportunities and development
ambitions for Trenza and the larger Galisteo Basin Preserve.’

“The Applicant proposes to reduce the extent of the original planning envelope
from 10,316 acres to 3,560 acres.

“Based on the changed size and scale of the proposed development, the project’s
water budget will be reduced. Specifically the water budget for the development
uses will involve a 78 acre-foot allocation for residential uses and-20.45 acre-foot
allocation for mixed use, commercial and civic land uses. By this allocation, the
proposed water demand at full build-out in 2026 would total 98.45 acre-foot.

“The Applicant also requests a modification to the original Master Plan to change
the location of the proposed Memorial Landscape known as the Green Cemetery.
The Memorial Landscape will be relocated slightly south of its current location to
an area that will allow for improved access from Moming Star Ridge Road.

“The Application includes a revision to the original five-phase development to six
phases that would take place over a period of 12 years. Phase 1 of the
development, a residential neighborhood will consist of 11 residential units

County Development Review Committee: November 20, 2014 6
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ranging in size from 750 square feet to 1,450 square feet and an 11-acre
Memorial/Green Cemetery, a 60-seat community outdoor performance
space/amphitheater and a 10,000 square foot storage facility for the Special Use
parcel, which will be located approximately 1/3 mile southeast of the North Face
neighborhood. The storage facility will be constructed in two phases. The
facility’s first 5,000 square feet will be constructed in Phasel with the remaining
square footage to be constructed in Phase 3.

“The following Phases 2 through 6 will consist of the following: Phase 2 - 88
residential units and 27,850 square feet of commercial/civic uses; Phase 3 - 88
residential units and 27,850 square feet of commercial/civic uses; Phase 4 - 88
residential units and 27,800 square feet of commercial/civic uses: Phase 5 - 88
residential units; and Phase 6 - 87 residential units.

Mr. Archuleta stated the Applicant requests a Master Plan Amendment to
reconfigure the Planning Envelope from 10,360 acres to 3,560 acres, to reduce the size of
the development from 965 dwelling units and 150,000 square feet of commercial and
civic land uses to 450 dwelling units and 88,500 square feet of mixed use, commercial
and civic land uses, a green cemetery and a 60-seat outdoor amphitheater. The Applicant
also requests a revision of the original five-phase development to six phases that would
take place over a period of 12 years. Therefore, staff recommends approval of the
request for Master Plan Amendment subject to the following conditions:

1. The Amended Master Plan must be recorded with the County Clerk’s office prior
to Preliminary Plat.

2. An Affordable Housing Agreement must be prepared and submitted for
consideration by the Board of County Commissioners along with the Final Plat
and/or Development Plan for the projects first development phase.

3. The Applicants shall meet all Preliminary and Final Plat and Development Plan
requirements for each phase.

4, The Applicants shall construct the Community Water and Community Sewer
system with Phase 1.

Mr. Archuleta distributed additional pages consisting of the Hydrologist’s report.
[Exhibit 2]

Member Gonzales asked about the average lot size and if the new water budget is
adequate for the proposed development. Mr. Archuleta said the hydrologist report says it
is sufficient.

Duly swom, agent Scott Hoeft said they concur with the conditions of approval.
In response to the question from Member Gonzales he said the lots range from 4,500 to
6,500 square feet. The water budget allows .16 acre-feet for the residential uses and
additional for the civic and commercial uses.

He gave a history of the projects, including a number of extensions, saying
through it all the project has been true to its initial vision which emphasizes preservation

County Development Review Committee; November 20, 2014 7
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of open space. There has been an adjustment to market conditions. He said 25 of the 50
miles of public trails have been completed.

Member Katz asked what was anticipated for commercial development. Mr. Hoeft

said in addition to the amphitheater there will be civic uses and small retail and mixed
use. It will be evaluated as they proceed.

Member Gonzales asked if the trails were being used and Mr. Hoeft said they see

12,000 users per year. There are three trailheads.

There was no one from the public wishing to speak.

Member Katz moved to approve CDRC #A 06-5033 with conditions. Member

Booth seconded. The motion carried by unanimous 5-0 voice vote.

G.

CDRC CASE # FDP Glorieta Fire Station No. 2 Final Development Plan.
Santa Fe County, Applicant, Riskin Associates Architecture (Marcie Riskin),
Agent, request Final Development Plan approval for an unmanned fire
station on 1.52 acres. The proposed 3,140 square foot fire station will consist
of 3 apparatus bays and an administration area (restrooms, office, classroom
and storage), The property is located at 366 Old Denver Highway in Glorieta,
east of Leadville Lane, within Section 1, Township 15 North, Range 11 East
(Commission District 4) [Exhibit 3: Fire Marshal’s Report]

Mr. Archuleta read the staff report as follows:

“The Applicant is requesting Final Development Plan approval for a 3,140 square
foot un-manned volunteer fire station to be located in Glorieta, which will consist
of three apparatus bays and administration area, which will consist of restrooms,
office, classroom and storage. : The nearest fire station is located approximately
four miles to the west on the south side of I-25. The property was acquired from
the New Mexico Department of Transportation (NMDOT) on December 9, 2004
and the deed was recorded in the Office of the County Clerk on December 21,
2004 and recorded as Document No. 1359749. The applicant met the Public
Notice requirements of the Land Development Code by sending letters to the
adjoining property owners and by placing the Public Notice Boards on the subject
property.

“Article V, § 7.2, Final Development Plan, states: ‘a final development plan
conforming to the approved preliminary plan and approved preliminary plat, if
required, and containing the same required information shall be submitted. In
addition, the final development plan shall show, when applicable, and with
appropriate dimensions, the locations and size of buildings, heated floor area of
buildings, and minimum building setbacks from lot lines or adjoining streets.*”

County Development Review Committee: November 20, 2014 8
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October 8, 2014

Penny Ellis Green, Manager
Santa Fe County Land Use Administration Office

CDRC CASE #Z 06-5033

RE: Commonweal Conservancy Master Plan Amendment to reconfigure the Planning Envelope
from 10,360 acres to 3,560 acres, to reduce the size of the development from 965 dwelling units
and 150,000sf of commercial/civic to 450 dwelling units and 88,500sf commercial/civic uses. The
applicant also requests that the original 5-phase development be changed to 6 phases over a 12-
year period.

The property is south of Eldorado and west off US285, south of the railroad track crossing,

Comments:

The Northern New Mexico Group of the Rio Grande Chapter of Sierra Club has several members
that reside in the US285 corridor and are familiar with the Commonweal Conservancy and the
plans of the President, Ted Harrison. Since this project came into being 11 years ago, Mr. Harrison
has shown his willingness to attend community meetings, meet privately with individuals and to
listen and change his plans to better meet the needs of the population he wishes to serve as well as
address the concerns of local residents. He has funded 3 independent water studies in the past
and is well informed as to the availability of water on his property to sustain this downsized
Master Plan. These water reports demonstrate the lack of impact the project will have on nearby
water use areas such as Eldorado and Lamy, which is a major ongoing concern of residents in this
area.

Over the last several years, the Commonweal Conservancy has followed through on many of its
goals for the larger community through establishing a large public Galisteo Preserve and creating
over 25 miles of public trails for outdoor hiking, biking, wildlife watching and dog walking. The
area is very popular with locals and people come from around the county to enjoy the unusual
rock formations, scenic trails, protected cultural resources and extensive varieties of wildflowers
and wildlife species.

This amendment to reduce the size and density of this project has the full support of the Northern
New Mexico Group, and we commend Commonweal Conservancy for their creation of the Galisteo
Preserve and their ongoing efforts to strike the right balance of conservation and development on
the land.

Gown Asomi®,

Teresa Seamster, Co-chair, Northern New Mexico Group, Sierra Club

N, MR S llic s

Norma McCallan, Co-chair, Northern New Mexico Group, Sierra Club
1807 Second Street, Suite 45, Santa Fe, NM 87505
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January 9, 2015

Santa Fe Board of County Commissioners:

mchavez@santafecountynm.gov

ranaya !@SEI’IthECOUFI tynm.gov

kholian@santafecountynm.gov

Istefanics@santafecountynm.gov

hproybal@santafecountynm.gov

vlogez@santafecountynm.gov

Re Galisteo Basin Preserve (Trenza) Master Plan Amendment

)
Dear Commissioners:

1 am writing in support of the proposed GBP Master Plan Amendment. 1 have lived in Santa Fe for
twenty years, and also own property within the Preserve Area, on parts of which we have dedicated
conservation easements in furtherance of the goals and philosophy of the overall development.

My son and | regularly take advantage of the many trails and open space that the developer has
made available to the public through the Preserve area. For some time now, we have been looking
forward to the creation of the modest sized Trenza community, as it would bring some amenities to the
broader geographic area as well as housing opportunities. Economic conditions have proved to be an
obstacle to success, but we agree with and support the developer’s application to amend the Master
Plan for the purposes of reducing the density of the Trenza project to bring it in line with current
economic expectations.

Commonweal as the developer has been a very careful and conscientious steward of the
conservation values that drew my interest to this development and the Galisteo Basin nearly a decade
ago. As a board member of several museums, | have also found Commonweals sensitivity to native
cultures and archeology, and the landscape, to be worthy of commendation. Throughout the privately
held parcels in the Preserve, Commonweal has imposed covenants to guide home construction and long
term living in @ way that recognizes important water limitations and promotes the conservation of the
land, indigenous vegetation and wildlife, among other things. | only wish that other developers and



projects in Santa Fe County were worthy of such commendation. [n my view the Preserve is exceptional
and this proposed Amendment ought to be championed.

As one drives along 285 it is apparent that the entire corridor south of I-25 has suffered from a kind
of “ranchette” sprawl on smallish parcels. On the other side of the County, Arizona-type golf course
developments have been completed with an exclusionary feeling for the general public. The proposed
GBP Amendment is directed towards a very different kind of development—a more thoughtful and
inclusive approach that recognizes the importance of open space, views, the landscape and resources
(including water). As well as the notion that all of these things ought to be available to all of our people.

| believe this kind of balanced approach is the appropriate one to adopt and support in our County
for these somewhat remote regions like the Galisteo Basin, where we have the opportunity to avoid
past mistakes as well as future ones. Naysayers that want nothing in the Preserve, or desire that their
own agenda be adopted with respect to the development, must be heard of course. But we should also
understand that some of this opposition seems to be guided by unfounded fears and rumors, or simply
by a desire to avoid change. But, a much denser development was already atpproved in the general plan.

| believe that the proposed Amendment should be welcomed as an effort to maintain the values of
the original GBP development idea, while adapting the project specifics to the current economic
environment. The amended version will use less water, not more. There will be less housing density, not
more. Less commercial density, not more. No new actual or potential impositions on the surrounding

area are included within the Amendment. And all the surrounding trail system and public access
survive.

In conclusion, | add the support of my family ta this Amendment and urge you to adopt it as
proposed.

Sincerely,

Pavid Cartwright
3301 Camino Lisa

Santa Fe NM 87501
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Vicki Lucero

From: Edward Fleming <efa@cybermesa.com>

Sent: Monday, January 12, 2015 8:09 AM

To: Miguel Chavez; Robert A. Anaya; Kathy S. Holian; Liz Stefanics; Henry P. Roybal; Vicki
Lucero

Subject: Commonweal Conservancy: Trenza; Proposed Master Plan Amenment

Dear County Commissioners,

My name is Edward Fleming. | am a resident of and property owner in Galisteo, NM and am writing to you to voice my
support for the Trenza project in the Galisteo Basin Preserve that is being developed by Commonweal Conservancy.

I have known Ted Harrison and the Commonweal staff for over 10 years and have on occasion worked with them as an
independent contractor (sculptor). | strongly believe that they have upheld the highest standards of professionalism and
land stewardship and the Galisteo Basin Preserve represents the greatest hope for sustainable as well as restorative
 development in this region. |

And from a purely practical and realistic point of view, if the Galisteo Basin Preserve and Trenza project are thwarted,
we all know that the balance of the Thornton Ranch property will eventually be developed. And if for short-sighted
reasons the Commonweal project is defeated, it will not be another conservation development that takes it's place but
rather business as usual development that will put a far heavier and unsustainable burden on the land and it's
ineighbors. We and our families can not afford that cost.
| |
1 would like to commend the BCC for it's responsibility to our children, grandchildren and many future generations as has
| been demonstrated by it's support, so far, for the Galisteo Basin Preserve. This kind of intelligent, un-selfish forward-
' thinking and action is what will be a mode! for New Mexico and many other parts of the world facing similar challenges.
This is true responsibility.

So, | encourage you to continue your support of Commonweal Conservancy, the Galisteo Basin Preserve and the
amendment to the Master Plan.

Sincerely,
Edward Fleming



Vicki Lucero
e —— e e .,

“+om: Charles Hertz <charles@claybrook.coms
2nt: Sunday, lanuary 11, 2015 4:02 PM
To: Henry P. Roybal; Kathy S. Holian; Liz Stefanics; Miguel Chavez; Robert A. Anaya; Vicki
Lucero
Subject: Galisteo Basin Preserve Master Plan Amendment

Dear Commissioners;

I am writing this letter to support the proposed Galisteo Basin Preserve Master Plan Amendment, which is intended
primarily to downsize the plans for the Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve, otherwise known as Trenza.

My wife and | are homeowners in Galisteo Basin Preserve, where we have lived for the better part of two years. Prior to
that, we lived in a home just off Route 285, a bit south of Eldorado, and we are quite familiar with the whole 285
“corridor” south of Santa Fe.

tam unable to thtlnk of any entity that has been had a more thoughtful and creative influence on the area than
Commonweal Conservancy. Asyou know, the bulk of Galisteo Basin Preserve is reserved as open space, laced with
biking, hiking, and horse riding trails. Even on the parcel that we own, we are permitted no fences or structures of any
sort outside the small building envelope that our house occupies; and we were required {quite willingly) to adhere to
strict standards in constructing our house, so that its impact on the land, visual and otherwise, is minimal. The result is
that a significant part of the Galisteo Basin remains virtually unspoiled, and accessible to the public, yet satisfying the
county’s need fof residential housing. This strikes me as being in sharp contrast with much of the other development
‘ang Route 285, and elsewhere in Santa Fe County.

The plans for Trenza have been thoughtfully and carefully developed, and have been approved by the Commission. The
proposed amendment simply reduces the size of the village, in recognition of the new economic realities that have
evolved in recent years. | have heard it said that the land freed up in this process could, in theory, be sold off in large
residential parcels, and that this would have a negative impact on water resources. This makes no sense; no matter
what happens, the population density of the area would be reduced, as would, therefore, the need for water.

In summary, my wife and | are firmly in support of the proposed GBP Master Plan Amendment, and hope that you will
approve it.

Sincerely,
Charles 5. Hertz, Jr., M.D.

90 Tharnton Ranch Road
Larmy, NM 87540



Vicki Lucero

From: John Liddell <jmliddeli56@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, January 11, 2015 3:21 PM

To: Miguel Chavez; Robert A. Anaya; Kathy S. Holian; Liz Stefanics; Henry P. Roybal; Vicki
Lucero

Cc: John Liddell

Subject: Galisteo Basin Preserve (Trenza} Master Plan Amendment

Dear Commissioners:

I am writing in support of the proposed Galisteo Basin Preserve Master Plan Amendment. My wife and [ live in
the Southern Crescent, one of the developments within the Basin and the nearest to the proposed Trenza
community. We built a LEED platinum certified home and moved into it in June 2012. When we niade the
decision to purchase a lot here, we also agreed the Trenza concept. Understanding the ecor[omic challenges of
the initial proposal, we now agree with Commonweal's more modest amendment that adheres to the initial
concept, but reflects a more economically viable

approach.

Please approve the proposed
amendment. Thank you.

Sincerely,

John Liddell
2 Southen Crescent
Lamy, NM 87540

505.216.1865

: &



iciero -

‘om: Bob Palardy <Bob.Palardy@Ipcorp.com>
sent: Monday, January 12, 2015 12:40 PM
To: Miguel Chavez; Robert A. Anaya; Kathy S. Holian; Henry P. Roybal; Vicki Lucero; Liz
Stefanics
Subject: RE: Galisteo Basin Preserve (Trenza) Master Plan Amendment
January 12, 2015

To: Santa Fe County Board of Commissioners

Dear Commissioners,

As owners of property and future residents of the Galisteo Basin Preserve, we are writing to voice our support for the
GBP ({Trenza) Master Plan Amendment.

The revised development plan maintains the objectives of the original one, while reflecting changes in economic
conditions which have occurred since the approval of the original plan. The adjustments to the plan appear to have
been well thought out. The scaled-down footprint of the village will result in a significantly reduced impact on land and
water rasources, while greatly enhancing access to the Preserve's lifestyle benefits for individuals and families from a
wide range of income levels. We welcome, respect, and support this objective.

Our confidence in the Master Plan Amendment is bolstered by the track record of the developer. He has demonstrated,

Jaring challenging economic times, not only the unwavering intention, but also the ability to uphold Commonweal's
stated values and commitments to GBP's stakeholders, including property owners, the surrounding comml.mities, county
government, and the public.

We respectfully encourage the members of the Board to approve the GBP Master Plan Amendment,
Sincerely,

Hollye Gallion and Robert Palardy

Current address:

819 Boscobel Street

Nashvilie, TN

615-618-2870

Future:

24 Southern Crescent Road, Lamy, NM 87540



BCC COMMONWEAL MEETING JANUARY 13TH
TO: COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

FROM: Rod Hall, President -Galisteo Mutual Domestic and
Roger Taylor, President -Ranchitos de Galisteo Water Users Association

SUBJECT: Village at Galisteo Basin Preserve (Trenza) Master Plan Amendment

We have reviewed the scope of the revised plan by Commonweal filed with
and approved by the CDRC on November 20, 2014 which reduces the
footprint for this development. In particular, Commonweal Conservancy (Ted
Harrison) has requested to reconfigure the Planning Envelope from 10,360
acres to 3,560 acres, to reduce the size of the development from 965 dwelling
units to 450 dwelling units, to reduce the commercial and civic land uses from
150,000 square feet to 88,500 square feet of mixed use, commercial and civic
land use, and a change in the five-phase plan to six phases to take place over a
12 year period.

We do have questions about the impact of these proposed changes, and
continued concerns about water impact on the area and to wording about
water in this amended proposal.

At the hearing held December 13% 2011 the BCC granted a 36 month
extension for a portion of the master plan, Phase one or 131 single family lots
and 3 multi-family residential lots for a total of 149 units. This extension was
set to expire 2/9/15. A Variance also allowed Commonweal to re-size some
acreage and sell them as additional lots. At least 2 parcels of 400-500 acres
have been sold to private purchasers, and there is a 4,000 acre “ranch” being
marketed. How do these changes impact the proposed development and the
Conservancy? What is the disposition of the approximately 7,000 acres from
the reduced Planning Envelope? Does this reduction change any of
Commonweal’s proposed zoning, which may allow for more scattered lot
building rather than the prior approved condensed “village” approach?

Mr. Harrison requested that the County consider providing the development
(Trenza) with water should the Buckman pipeline be extended to the area.
Although Mr Harrison has repeatedly introduced hydrology reports
demonstrating sufficient water for this development, we wish to em
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that it still only has 2.84 afy of water rights (which restricts any large scale
well pumping).

As such, the “water budget allocation” quoted in this amended proposal can
only be interpreted as the developer’s planned water needs but has no

correlation to any water rights secured by the developer. Please note:
Commonweal only obtained an estimated 2.84 afy when the property was

originally purchased from the Thornton family. His current “water budget
allocation” is being reduced from 195 afy to 98.45 afy or 32 million gallons for
water per year per the November 20, 2014 CDRC filing. As of now he does not

own any water rights except the 2.84afy acquired through the original land
purchase.

Prior to the last extension filing, Commonweal was attempting to purchase
and transfer water rights (owned by Kay Rivers) to the development from
wells located west of this area. The village of Galisteo filed a Water Rights
Impairment Protest letter against the transfer of these water rights, arguing it
would negatively affect the water source south of Commonweal. The law firm
of Ode & Humphrey represented our interests in this dispute before the OSE,
which was in the process of denying this transfer (agreeing with us on the
basis that these water rights had not been put to beneficial use in the past 30
years and therefore were no longer valid) when Commonweal withdrew its
application for this transfer.

Recently, Ted Harrison once again indicated he is reviewing the purchase of
water rights (source not disclosed) to be transferred for the express use to
provide water to the development. Any transfer of water rights to this area

which could adversely affect the water supply to Galisteo will be Protested by
us.

Given these facts and this history, we are particularly concerned that Point 4
of the conditions set forth by the BCC during the original development
approval indicated “Commonweal shall construct the Community Water and
Community Sewer system for Phase 1”. Since Commonweal only has 2.84 afy
of water rights, it would seem that any approval of Phase 1 would mean
Commonweal has only one option: pursuing the County for this water source.
We strongly urge the BCC to insure that the water for this development comes
from the County rather any wells developed north of Galisteo.
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That, of course, may be problematic. We noted with interest the recent story
(attached) in the Santa Fe New Mexican (12/29) regarding the shortage in the
amount of water derived from the San Juan-Chama Project. It is not
unexpected, in fact has been forecasted, but alarming all the same.
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From: marypat@skt org
Sent: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 11:06 AM

To: Robert A. Anaya; Miguel Chavez; Kathy S. Holian; hroyba!@sandtafecountynm.gov; Liz Stefanics; Vicki
Lucero

Cc;

Subject: Letier of support - Galisteo Basin Preserve Master Plan Amendment

Dear Commissioners:

As the Executive Director of the the Santa Fe Conservation Trust (SFCT) I am writing
to express my organization's full support for the proposed Galisteo Basin Preserve (GBP)
Master Plan Amendment. SFCT has worked closely over the last 6 plus years with the
developer to ensure the permanent protection of the Preserve, while simultaneously building

one of the largest publicly accessible recreational trail networks in the Southwest on private
land.

The GBP is a true model! for future development (with a major land conservation
component) in Santa Fe County and northern New Mexico, and I urge you to approve this
amendment which is necessary to adapt to the realities of today's economy. Not only does
the Amendment reduce by half the amount of development, but its corresponding need for
water without compromising the original intent of conserving almost 10,000 acres of open
space within the boundaries of the Preserve.

SFCT remains a strong partner with Commonweal Conservancy-and looks forward to placing
additional lands under our conservation protection with the developer in perpetuity.

Sincerely,

Charlie O'Leary

Executive Director

Santa Fe Conservation Trust
P.O. Box 23985

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502

Charlie@sfct.org
505-989-7019
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February 9, 2015

Santa Fe Board of County Commissioners
Commissioner Robert Anaya

Commissioner Kathy Holian

Commissioner Liz Stefanics

Commissioner Miquel Chavez
Commissioner Henry Royal

Re: Commonweal Conservancy Trenza Master Plan

Dear Commissioners,

The Northern New Mexico Group of Sierra Club has been a partner in wildlife restoration .
with Ted Harrison and Commonweal Conservancy in Santa Fe County for the past 5 years.

Through the Commonweal's conservation planning that includes conservation easements,
the “re-wilding” of private property and preserve lands has been accomplished with the re-
introduction of Gunnison'’s prairie dogs. This “umbrella species” now has a stable
population on grasslands where they were formerly extirpated and a host of birds, insects,
lizards, toads, reptiles and larger mammals, that depend upon prairie dog ecology, have
returned and been documented since 2012.

Commonweal Conservancy has evolved step by step since it was first conceived by owner
Ted Harrison. His concern for appropriate land use, low water consumption and good
relationships with neighboring landowners is exemplary.

It seems a safe assumption, after all these years, that there will be no speculative home
building or commercial facilities built without sound investments by purchasers. If the Plan
is approved and something is built - it will be done responsibly - and with real
consideration of the water constraints and growth limitations in the county.

We have worked with Ted and the Commonweal staff for many years, and one fact has been
demonstrated repeatedly. This group takes land stewardship very seriously. If there were

definitions of “good neighbor” and “responsible developer” then the Commonweal would
exemplify them.
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Vicente Archuleta
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m: Vicki Lucero
-nt: Meonday, February 09, 2015 12:22 PM
To: Vicente Archuleta
Subject: FW: Support for Galisteo Basin Preserve Master Plan Amendment Application to BCC

From: Ann Jenkins [mailto:jenkinsaa @gmail.com]

Sent: Sunday, February 08, 2015 8:50 PM

To: Vicki Lucero

Subject: Support for Galisteo Basin Preserve Master Plan Amendment Application to BCC

To Board of County Commissioners and Santa Fe County Staff:

I express my personal support for the Master Plan Amendment as proposed by the Galisteo Basin

Preserve. Under the stewardship of the Commonweal Conservancy, the Preserve has already proven to be an
important part of our lives here in the 285 South Corridor. The vistas of open space, the trails, and the programs
held in the area by the Cowboy Shack are enjoyed by many -- and contribute to our better understanding of our
environment and our history.

Your support of the revised development plans for the Preserve is critical. Although I cannot attend this
meeting in person, 1 urge you through this email to approve the proposed amendment to the master plan.

ank you,

Ann

Ann Jenkins

14 Camino Costadino, Santa Fe, NM 87508
505-466-1519
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